
Notice of Public Meeting  
  

San Diego River Conservancy  
  

A public meeting of the Governing Board of  
The San Diego River Conservancy  

will be held Thursday,   
  

September 3, 2009 
9:30 am – 11:30 am  

  
Meeting Location  

  
San Diego City Hall 202 “C” Street 

Conference Room B, 12th Floor 
San Diego, California 92101 

 
  Tele-Conference Location: 1416 Ninth Street 

 Resources Agency Conference Room 1305 Sacramento, CA 95814  
(877) 287-0283 / Participant Code 606349 

   
Contact: Michael Nelson  

(619) 645-3183  
  

Meeting Agenda  
 

 1.   Roll Call  
 

 2.  Approval of Minutes  
  
 3.  Public Comment  

Any person may address the Governing Board at this time regarding any matter within the 
Board’s authority. Presentations will be limited to three minutes for individuals and five minutes 
for representatives of organizations. Submission of information in writing is encouraged.  

 
4.  Chairperson’s and Governing Board Members’ Report  

 
 5.  Deputy Attorney General Report 

 
  
  



  
 6.   San Diego River Footbridge: Preliminary Concepts    

           
  Presentation :  

 
        Frieder Seible, Ph.D., P.E., Dean, 
 Jacobs School of Engineering 
 University of California, San Diego 
 
 Gernot Komar, P.E., Senior Associate 
 David Evans and Associates, Inc 
 

 7.  Executive Officer’s Report  
The following topics may be included in the Executive Officers Report. The Board may take 
action regarding any of them: 

 
 San Diego River Trail – Status Technical Working Group 
 
 Initiation of Prop 40 Projects 
  -Riverford Road Segment-San Diego River Trail 
  -Invasives Control and Restoration- SDSU- Carlton Oaks 
  -River Gorge Trail-San Diego River Trail 
 
 Status  Report -  Proposition 84 Projects 
  -Tributary Canyons 
  -San Diego River Trail- Gaps Analysis  
 
 Status Report; Land Conservation Projects 
   -Walker Properties – Santee 
   -Hanson Pond- El Monte Valley 
 

2009  Work Plan: JPA  Analysis  
 

  
8.  San Diego River invasive Non-native Plant Control and Riparian 

Restoration Program  
 
 (Consideration of Adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration)  
  

  -Presentation and Report: Ann Van Leer, Jason Giessow 
  -Resolution 09-08 

 
 9.   Adjournment 

 
 

Accessibility  
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you require a disability related modification 
or accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please call 
Michael Nelson at 619-645-3183  



State of California 
San Diego River Conservancy 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S SUMMARY REPORT 
Meeting of September 3, 2009 

 
 
ITEM: 1 
 
SUBJECT: ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS 
  
 
  
 



State of California 
San Diego River Conservancy 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S SUMMARY REPORT 
Meeting of September 3, 2009 

 
 
ITEM: 2 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 The Board will consider adoption of the July 9, 2009 

public meeting minutes. 
 
PURPOSE: The minutes of the July 9, 2009 Board Meeting are 

attached for your review. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve minutes  
 



SAN DIEGO RIVER CONSERVANCY (SDRC) 
Minutes of July 9, 2009 Public Meeting 

 
(Draft Minutes for Approval September 3, 2009) 

 
Chairperson Donna Frye called the July 9, 2009 meeting of the San Diego River    
Conservancy to order at approximately 9:36 a.m. 

 
 1.  Roll Call  

 
Members Present, 
Donna Frye, Chair Council Member, City of San Diego 
Ben Clay Public at Large 
Dianne Jacob Supervisor, Second District 
Ruth Hayward       Public at Large 
Bryan Cash Alternate, Natural Resources Agency (via phone) 
Miriam Ingenito   Alternate, Department of Finance (via phone) 
Toni Atkins      Council Member, Public at Large  
David King                  San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board  
John Donnelly            Wildlife Conservation Board (via phone) 
Andrew Poat               Public at Large 
Ronie Clark Alternate, Department of Parks and Recreation 
 
Absent 

     Jerry Sanders            Mayor, City of San Diego 
Karen Scarborough    Natural Resources Agency 
Anne Haddad Public at Large 
 
Staff Members Present 

     Michael Nelson, Executive Officer 
     Hayley Peterson,         Deputy Attorney General  
     Julia Richards,  Administrative Services Manager 
     Ann Van Leer,  Consultant, San Diego River Conservancy 
        
   2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Ben Clay moved for approval of the minutes for the March 5, 2009 public meeting. The 
motion was seconded by Ruth Hayward and was unanimously adopted.  
 

3. Public Comment   
 

Any person may address the Governing Board at this time regarding any matter within the              
Board’s authority. Presentations will be limited to three minutes for individuals and five  minutes 
for representatives of organizations. Submission of information in writing is encouraged.  

 
 

 1



 
Rob Hutsel, Executive Director of the San Diego River Park Foundation thanked the Board for 
SDRC’s leadership and specifically Donna Frye and the City of San Diego for the completion of 
the Ocean Beach Bike Path Extension and dedication of Sefton Park. He also thanked the 
Board for its $3000 sponsorship of River Days in May.  
 
Donna Frye stated that the dedication of Sefton Field was very significant, since there is 
almost no dedicated parkland in Mission Valley and commented that the ability to hike or bike 
from Mission Valley to Ocean Beach was a truly remarkable accomplishment 

 
4.  Chairperson’s and Governing Board Members’ Report 

 
No Report 
 

 5.   Deputy Attorney General’s Report  
 
No Report     
 

6. Santa Ana River Trail and Parkway Partnership (PowerPoint Presentation) 
 
Mike Nelson explained his belief that the experiences of the Santa Ana River Trail which 
extends more than 100 miles through San Bernardino, Riverside and Orange Counties could 
serve as a case study that might provide the governing board with insight as it contemplates 
how best to pursue a capital strategy to complete the San Diego River Trail. He introduced 
Patricia Lock-Dawson, chief strategist for the Santa Ana River Trail and Dana Rochet, 
representing the Wildlands Conservancy. 
 
Patricia Lock Dawson made a power point presentation of the strategy the Santa Ana River 
Trail sponsors employed to secure financial support and regional collaboration for their Trail 
project. She reported that their trail runs 100 miles from the crest of the San Bernardino 
Mountains to the coast of the Pacific Ocean and goes through three counties and 14 cities and 
multiple special jurisdictions.  She said that despite the great interest many citizens and 
elected officials had in developing a trail, jurisdictions had worked independently, but never 
been able to gain traction.  She stated that a change occurred in 2005 when a couple of 
elected officials and the Wildlands Conservancy brought stakeholders and officials from the 
counties and municipalities together to form a regional partnership which executed a 
Memorandum of Understanding  that defined the expectations and responsibilities of each 
jurisdiction and participant. 
 
She discussed the formation of a Policy Advisory Committee (PAC) comprising the leadership 
of both counties and numerous municipalities as a decision making and fund raising body, as 
well as, a Technical Committee comprising staff from parks and public works departments that 
would develop a work plan, plus build and manage the trail. She testified that these two groups 
worked in tandem very successfully and is a model that has been very effective. She also 
described the partnership’s successful efforts to obtain stable funding. She said the 
collaboration eventually would raise $100 million and had secured 45milion of Proposition 84 

 2



funding from the State of California towards that goal. 
 
Dana Rochet discussed the role of the Wildlands Conservancy. She stated that her 
organization recognizing the support that existed for a trail, conducted a symposium that 
brought together the counties, cities and managers of parks and recreation, State Parks, the 
Army Corps of Engineers to discuss the Santa Ana River. It sparked a renaissance along the 
river that led to the formation of a Blue Ribbon Committee which created a vision for the river 
that established consistency and continuity of purpose. The Conservancy continues to assist 
the Policy and Technical Committees accomplish this vision. 
  
Ben Clay asked Patricia and Dana to further explain the relationship between the policy 
committee and the technical committee.   
 
Dana Rochet,  said the Policy Advisory Committee (PAC) were the elected officials and the 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) includes parks directors such as the general manager of 
Riverside County Parks and Open Space, the director of San Bernardino County Parks and as 
well as the directors of parks for the cities.  The TAC meets bimonthly as does the PAC on 
alternate months.  This structure allows the TAC to analyze information, deliberate, and 
prepare recommendation that are presented to the decision making body, the PAC. 
 
 Ben Clay asked whether the governance structure was a Joint Powers Authority or a State 
Chartered Conservancy.  
 
Dana Rochet, she said to the contrary, there was an aversion to a formal governance 
structure and that the partnership felt it had sufficient authority and capacity to build and 
operate a trail, so they decided that a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was sufficient.   
 
Dianne Jacob questioned the $100 million in funding that was referenced and asked Patricia 
to elaborate and explain the public-private nature of their funding. 
 
Patricia Lock Dawson stated that partnership obtained $45 million in general obligation bonds 
through Proposition 84 and that the Wildlands Conservancy brought in excess of $20 million in 
private funds and that $100 million figure was an estimate of the Trails total estimated costs.  
 
Dana Rochet added that the Wildlands Conservancy had actually contributed almost $38 in 
private charitable donations and grants. 
 
Patricia Lock Dawson indicated that the federal government’s investment exceeds $20 million 
and there were also investments by local governments, developer impact fees, federal 
Transportation Enhancement Funds, as well as $7-5 million in Proposition 50 and 12 monies.  
 
Dianne Jacob asked if volunteers were used to construct the trail.  
 
Patricia Lock Dawson replied that volunteers were important, but not to construct the trail, 
that their role was primarily stewardship and clean-up. The counties have taken the lead on 
construction, and as building managers for the trails, oversee the construction within their 
jurisdiction. 

 3



 
Dianne Jacob asked who assumes the liability. 
 
Patricia Lock Dawson stated that at this point, liability was primarily the responsibility of the 
counties and water districts. 
  
Dianne Jacob asked if she had suggestions of how SDRC might proceed,  
 
Patricia Lock Dawson, stressed the importance of engaging elected officials that will make 
the trail a priority and insisting that upper management of the public agencies and non profits, 
like the Wildlands Conservancy remain committed. She added that the sustained commitment 
of all parties has remains constant on the Santa Ana River. 
 
Andrew Poat thanked Patricia and Dana and asked the Executive Officer what actions he felt   
might be appropriate for the Conservancy to take. 
 
Mike Nelson stated that it sounded as though the establishment of a policy and technical 
committee was critical to the Santa Ana’s success, so the Board might consider an approach 
that would ensure the commitment of elected officials and key agency staff. He stated his 
opinion that the Conservancy’s governing Board could serve as a decision making body, not 
unlike the Policy Advisory Committee Patricia and Dana mentioned. He made an observation 
that the Conservancy enjoys a very good working relationship with the upper echelons of 
management for all jurisdictions along the San Diego River, but said those interactions are 
typically independent and only infrequently as collaborations to pursue a regional project like 
the Trail. He concluded that he believed that the creation of a Technical Advisory Committee 
would be beneficial to achieving a river long trail, and could be critical to developing a capital 
strategy to fund it. 
  
He continued by pointing out that he and Kathy Keehan of the San Diego County Bicycle 
Coalition and the San Diego River Coalition met with SANDAG at the Board’s direction to ask 
how the Conservancy might best compete for funds to build the San Diego River Trail. 
SANDAG’s director of transportation planning admitted that he wasn’t aware of the Trail and 
recommended that we consider an approach similar to the Otay Valley Regional Park planning 
process that brought together elected officials and agency staff to develop a work plan for that 
Park. So, in sense he was recommending that we produce a strategic document and a 
governance structure that was not dissimilar to that found for the Santa Ana River.  
 
Donna Frye asked about the development of a map or graphic that could help market and 
define the trail as a regional priority 
 
Mike Nelson responded that one of the projects that had been suspended was collaboration 
with the Coastal Conservancy to develop a map and a gaps analysis. It was also one of those 
efforts that SDRC was pursuing in the absence of general obligation bonds in anticipation that 
this project would someday be restarted. He said he had invested some of the SEP funds 
SDRC had received from the SDRWQCB to continue working on the map that you see at the 
back of the room. It geographically delineates the SDRC’s statutory corridor and indentifies the 
current status of the Trail.  

 4



 
Toni Atkins reminded the Board that SDRC had attempted to connect with SANDAG 
sometime ago. She recommended that the Trail and its Work Plan be introduced to SANDAG 
in a formal fashion, which should be followed by strong expressions of support from Board 
members such as Donna, Supervisor Jacob and the Mayor. She also recommended that we 
involve Senator Kehoe, who has a great relationship with SANDAG.  
  
Mike Nelson agreed and said Board members were in a strong position to establish the formal 
strategy Toni recommended, He mentioned that Supervisor Jacob, Mayor Sanders and 
Councilmember Jack Dale of Santee, all sat on SANDAGs Executive Committee 
 
 Dianne Jacob agreed that the Conservancy should establish a technical committee and 
would offer a motion to do so if appropriate. 
 
 Donna Frye stated that she thought a motion would be most appropriate. 
 

Dianne Jacob moved that the Executive Officer establish a technical committee that               
would involve all the jurisdictions and agencies to prepare a work plan and capital 
strategy for the San Diego River Trail. Ben Clay seconded the motion which was 
carried unanimously. 

  
Dianne Jacob then asked how long it would take to pull a document like the one found in the 
Board’s packet together, because she felt the work plan was crucial.  
 
Dana Rochet responded that it took the Santa Ana River partnership 5-6 months once the 
committee’s were formed an up and running.   
 
Donna Frye suggested that the Executive Officer make the progress of the technical 
committee a permanent item for discussion at every SDRC meeting. She then questioned 
whether there were sufficient funds to complete a Work Plan and a good map. 
 
Mike Nelson stated that there were some funds in the SDRC’s operating budget and special 
deposit fund to continue the mapping, but was hoping the grant with the Coastal Conservancy 
might be restarted to help us with the additional costs associated with the establishment of a 
technical committee and the preparation of a work plan.  
 
Donna Frye asked that she be apprised of the costs of this exercise and any funding needs. 
  
Andrew Poat, volunteered to provide assistance to the technical advisoriy group. 
 
Dianne Jacob, stated that there is a SANDAG executive committee meeting tomorrow and 
that she would be attending. She said that she would consult with the Executive Officer this 
afternoon because she intended to raise the subject at the meeting.  
 
Rob Hutsel advised the Board that he a Kathy Keehan co-chaired the San Diego River 
Coalition’s Project Committee and stated that she would be the point person for the San Diego 
River Coalition on the Trail. He reminded the Board that much had been accomplished, but 

 5



acknowledged that the River Conservancy’s leadership on the river trail was important. 
 

7. Land Conservation Initiatives,  
 
Maintaining the Momenutum,TransNet Funding  
Michael Beck, Endangered Habitats League  
 
Michael Beck discussed his efforts to determine whether land conservation projects which 
have been jeporadizeded by the States fiscal crisis might satisfy SANDAG’s mitigation needs 
and qualify for TransNet funding.  He said a number of NGOs and agencies had identified 
projects that had been frozen which could benefit from this initiative. He indicated that Karen 
Scarborough had worked with him to arrange a meeting in Sacramento to consider the merits 
of such a proposal. Key staff at the Resources Agency, WCB, SCC, SDRC, EHL, SANDAG, 
F&G and others met and felt that such an approach could work. Subsequently, EHC’s Hanson 
Pond acquisition and SDRC’s Walker Property acquisition has emerged as good candidates to 
test this approach.  

 
County of San Diego, Quarterly Acquisition Meeting  
Trish Boaz, Chief, Resource Management Division  
Department of Parks and Recreation  
 
Trish Boaz Chief of the Resources Management Division for the County of San Diego, 
Department of Parks and Recreation introduced herself and discussed a successful effort led 
by the County, which brings together approximately 25 agencies and stakeholders throughout 
the region as a working group to develop strategies that satisfy multiple land conservation 
objectives. She conducted a power point presentation which revealed the conservation 
priorities of the county and the working group, which also identified some of the most notable 
successes. She said the County’s land conservation effort occurs in 13 watersheds and that 
their overarching priority was the MSCP.  

 
       USFWS Section 6 Recovery Grant (Walker Properties, Santee)  
 Mary Beth Woulfe, United State Fish and Wildlife Service  
 

Mary Beth Woulfe noted that Trish’s presentation had accurately described the Section 6 
targets for this year. She stated that the Walker Properties in Santee had been awarded a 
$1,000,000 Section 6 Recovery grant. She mentioned that state general obligation bonds had 
been offered as a match, but because they had been frozen other fund sources were being 
sought. She said the term for the grant was three years, which will begin in August.  
 
Mike Nelson added that that the Walker Property Mary Beth is the 120 acre project in Santee 
that the Board had discussed in close session at its last meeting and had encouraged 
Conservancy staff and TPL to move aggressively to acquire the properties. SDRC had worked 
successfully with TPL, F&G, and USFWS to prepare this successful Section 6 opportunity; and 
had become aware of the opportunity for Section 6 funding at the County of San Diego’s 
Quarterly Meetings which had just been discussed by Trish Boaz.  

 

 6



Grant Family Donation (Mission Valley)  
Rob Hutsel, Executive Director, San Diego River Park Foundation 
 
Rob Hutsel, discussed the important role donations can and has played in key acquisitions, 
placing emphasis on the Grant Family donation in Mission Valley. He stated that there were 7 
NGO’s actively acquiring properties within the watershed and raising funds that support public 
agencies land conservation programs.  He provided examples that included a 204 acre 
donation of land valued at $800,000 within the Eagle Peak Preserve as well as the most recent 
donation of 17 acres by the Grant family. 
 
John Donnelly asked whether any headway had been achieved on a policy that would allow 
Sec. 6 funds to be utilized in conjunction with mitigation fees and credits. 
  
Mary Beth Woulfe stated that USFWS are not able to use mitigation dollars to match the non-
federal component for programs and projects; so, they are looking at donations, bargain sales, 
things of that nature. She concluded that at this point the policy still stands that mitigation 
dollars would be inappropriate as a match source. 
 
Michael Beck stated that and he and others are still working on this policy. He added that 
Mary Beth gave the standing USFWS position. However, he said that the statewide MSCP 
group, an outgrowth of what was previously known as the 5-county funding group in southern 
California, is still working diligently on this issue.  He further stated that it was his view that this 
was not a legal issue, but a policy issue that everybody was working hard to resolve. He said it 
was very active, not a dead issue which hopefully could be resolved by the end of the year.  
 
John Donnelly agreed and stated that the issue was one of his concerns and hoped it would 
not just die. 
 

8. San Diego River Watershed Data Portal  
 
Rob Hutsel, Executive Director, San Diego River Park Foundation  
Joe Purohit, President, EcoLayers 
 
Mike Nelson reminded the Board of its approval of a $25,000 dollar grant to the San Diego 
River Park Foundation to create a web based portal that provided access to information about 
the projects of the SDRC, SDRPF, and SDRWQCB. The grant comprised Supplemental 
Environmental Project funding offered by the SDRWQCB. Mike introduced Rob Hutsel and Joe 
Purohits, who made a brief presentation and demonstrated the system. 
 
Rob Hutsel and Joe Purohit conducted an on-line demonstration and explained how the 
project implemented the data sharing component of the San Diego Watershed Management 
Plan. The demonstration focused on the 401 Certifications of the SDRWQCB, the River Blitz 
program of the SDRPF, and the projects of the SDRC 
 
Rob Hutsel stated that this was a small grant, but one that has created a system that is 
frequently used. As an example, he described how the project organized and provided access 

 7



to information gathered by volunteers at 17 sites that had been compiled over a five year 
period.  
 
Mike Nelson stated that this system allows SDRC to present the information found in your 
Board packets to the public geographically and by project.  
 
        

9. Status of General Obligation Bonds 
 
Michael Nelson, Executive Officer 
Bryan Cash, Deputy Assistant Secretary, Natural Resources Agency 
 
Mike Nelson informed the Board that the Conservancy is encouraging its partners to proceed 
with its Proposition 40 projects, particularly, the Riverford Road and River Gorge segments of 
the San Diego River Trail.  Though the Conservancy is moving forward with all of our 
Proposition 40 projects, Proposition 84 funds, which were set aside for SDRC within the 
budget of the State Coastal Conservancy, remain suspended.  Nonetheless all of our 
Proposition 40 funds have been encumbered and project agreements with the Resources 
Agency have been executed. Also, sponsors are beginning to receive reimbursements for 
completed projects such as the OB Bike Path Extension, Lakeside Trail, invasive removal at 
Mission Valley Preserve and the Eagle Peak Acquisitions.  
 
Bryan Cash stated that the State had two successful bond sales, one in March and one in 
April, and the funds have now been released for all of those sales, so that projects as Mike 
was stating that projects could get started again.  The cash from those sales have provided 
enough funding to get most projects started again and to provide at least until cash for these 
projects require until the end of this calendar year.  He said that he heard from the Treasurer’s 
Office that they were planning on having another sale in September.  He said the State’s 
bonds remain attractive, however with the fiscal crisis going on  and  not having a revised 
budget, it remains to be seen whether or not a September sale will happen  
                                 

10. Executive Officer’s Report 
 
Mike Nelson said that a former member of the governing board, Norman Roberts had died. He 
also noted that the Board will be asked to consider the approval of a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration at its September meeting to achieve compliance with CEQA for SDRC’s Invasives 
Control and Habitat Restoration Project. This is a project that will focus on the City of San 
Diego’s Water Department’s riparian property at the Carlton Oaks Golf Course as well as a 
nearby property owned by Caltrans. 
 
Andrew Poat, asked Mike Nelson about the impact of the current budget situation and 
specifically a requirement of 2 furlough days a month. 
 
Mike Nelson responded that SDRC’s operating budget was essentially intact, but advised that 
the number of furlough days had been increased to 3 days per month. 
 

 8



Andrew Poat asked how we could be subject to these actions, yet report that no projects were 
on hold. 
 
Mike Nelson, suggested that the furloughs represented a reduction in SDRC’s operating 
budget, not in the general obligation funded projects (Proposition 40) financed by the 
Resources Agency, all of which had been restarted. He further stated that general obligation 
fund projects (approximately $6,000,000) that were financed by the Proposition 84 remained 
suspended. 
  
Andrew Poat, asked for an explanation regarding the suspended projects and clarification that 
these projects could be restarted at such time that a budget is in place and bonds sales can be 
resumed 
 
Mike Nelson stated that circumstances affecting project funding at SCC differed from those at 
the Resources Agency. All of SDRC projects located at the Resources Agency had been 
approved, projects at the Coastal Conservancy had not. Approved projects are receiving funds 
before those that have not.  
 
Andrew Poat stated that his final question was whether there were any contracts that SDRC 
has entered into for services that are presently in jeopardy. 
 
Mike Nelson responded that the answer was no, and that in some cases SDRC was keeping 
projects alive by pursuing reduced “scope of works” for some projects. In some case he was, 
utilizing special deposit funds to accomplish a phase of the project in order to keep it active. So 
many of our projects have not been completely stopped, but have been modified to reflect the 
absence of general obligation funds. 
 
Donna Frye asked if the Executive Officer knew the dollar amounts necessary to complete a 
map and projects of the San Diego River Trail. 
 
Mike Nelson said that he couldn’t, but was confident that the work planning exercise for the 
San Diego River Trail that the Board had  just approved would produce cost estimates to 
produce a map and pursue segments of the Trail.. 
 
Dianne Jacob stated that this could be one of the benefits of the technical committee and that 
it may identify resources that are available from other jurisdictions, which could be utilized, like 
putting a map together and developing cost estimates. 
 
Ronie Clark asked if the action to freeze bond funds had resulted in the Conservancy 
sustaining additional costs.  
 
Mike Nelson answered that while the Conservancy did not sustain any additional costs; it is 
possible that its sponsors may have, since 85% of our projects are as grants, our partners 
incur costs in excess of the grant amount. 
 
 
      

 9



 10

11. The meeting was adjourned at 11:27 a.m.  
 
Accessibility  
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you require a disability related modification or 
accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please call Michael 
Nelson at 619-645-3183.  



State of California 
San Diego River Conservancy 
 
 
 
        EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S SUMMARY REPORT  
        Meeting of September 3, 2009 
 
 
ITEM: 3 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC COMMENT  
  
 
PURPOSE: Any person may address the Governing Board at this 

time regarding any matter within the Board’s authority 
which is not on the agenda.  Submission of information in 
writing is encouraged.  Presentations will be limited to 
three minutes for individuals and five minutes for 
representatives of organizations.  Presentation times may 
be reduced depending on the number of speakers.  

 
 



State of California 
San Diego River Conservancy 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S SUMMARY REPORT  
Meeting of September 3, 2009 
 

 
ITEM: 4 
 
SUBJECT: CHAIRPERSON’S AND GOVERNING BOARD 

MEMBER’S COMMENTS 
 
PURPOSE: These items are for Board discussion only and the Board 

will take no formal action. 
 



State of California 
San Diego River Conservancy 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
Meeting of September 3, 2009 

 
ITEM: 5 
 
SUBJECT: DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL’S REPORT  
 This item is for Board discussion only and the Board will 

take no formal action. (Hayley Peterson)   
 



State of California 
San Diego River Conservancy 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
Meeting of September 3, 2009 
 

 
 
ITEM: 6 
 
SUBJECT: SAN DIEGO RIVER FOOTBRIDGE:  PRELIMINARY 

CONCEPTS  
 
 

    
Presentations: 

 
Frieder Seible, Ph.D., P.E., Dean, 
Jacobs School of Engineering 
University of California, San Diego 
 
Gernot Komar, P.E., Senior Associate 
David Evans and Associates, Inc 

 



State of California 
San Diego River Conservancy 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S SUMMARY REPORT 
Meeting of September 3, 2009 

 
 
ITEM: 7 
 
SUBJECT: EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT  
 

The following topics may be included in the Executive 
Officers Report. The Board may take action regarding 
any of them: 

  
 
 
 San Diego River Trail – Status Technical Working Group 
 
 Initiation of Prop 40 Projects 
  -Riverford Road Segment-San Diego River Trail 
  -Invasives Control and Restoration- SDSU- Carlton Oaks 
  -River Gorge Trail-San Diego River Trail 
 
 Status  Report -  Proposition 84 Projects 
  -Tributary Canyons 
  -San Diego River Trail- Gaps Analysis  
 
 Status Report; Land Conservation Projects 
   -Walker Properties – Santee 
   -Hanson Pond- El Monte Valley 
 
 2009  Work Plan: JPA  Analysis 



Progress made on river path 

Another mile added to long‐awaited walkway  

 

By Julia Love 

2:00 a.m. July 16, 2009 

 

Photo by Sean Haffey San Diego Union‐Tribune 

 

A bike‐and‐pedestrian path along the San Diego River in Mission Valley has now been extended from 
Dog Beach east to Hotel Circle. Supporters hope the path will generate greater appreciation for the 
waterway. ‐ SEAN M. HAFFEY / Union‐Tribune 

 

Bicyclists and runners used the new portion of the path along the San Diego River. It is among the first 
major projects completed by the San Diego River Conservancy. 

MISSION VALLEY — One mile down, 39 to go.  

A new bike‐and‐pedestrian path through a section of Mission Valley is just one mile long. But legislators 
and environmentalists say the completion of the walkway two weeks ago represents a major milestone 
in the quest to create a trail stretching the length of the San Diego River, from Julian to Ocean Beach.  

Supporters hope the path will generate greater appreciation for the waterway.  

“People drive by all the time and just don't even realize the river is there,” said Kathy Keehan, executive 
director of the San Diego City Bike Coalition, an organization that has lobbied for the trail. “Now we're 

http://www3.signonsandiego.com/staff/sean-m-haffey/


seeing a lot of people who are like, 'Oh, there's a river!' Hopefully they'll grow to love the river like we 
do.”  

The project was initially slated for completion last June. But Jamal Batta, senior civil engineer with San 
Diego's Department of Engineering and Capital Projects, said that obtaining the necessary permits from 
the California Department of Transportation, the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System and North 
County Transit District kept the final 5 percent of the path from completion.  

“We were really hoping that it would go faster than it did . . . but now that it's done we're very pleased 
with the project,” Keehan said.  

The trail is among the first major projects completed by the San Diego River Conservancy, which 
contributed $2 million toward the $3 million construction cost. Now the conservancy has shifted its 
focus to forging other paths along the San Diego River.  

Mike Nelson, the conservancy's executive director, said he has secured funding for trails where the San 
Diego River meets the River Gorge in Cleveland National Forest, Riverford Road in Lakeside and Mast 
Park in Santee. Designs have been completed, and Nelson said he is optimistic that construction will 
begin within the next six months.  

Nelson said the conservancy also hopes to break ground on a path between Fashion Valley mall and 
Hazard Center, though funds for the project have been suspended by the state.  

The network of trails is a central component of the San Diego River Park, a planned chain of riverfront 
recreation spaces that would enhance the relationship between the waterway and neighboring 
communities.  

Officials hope the River Park will eventually stretch the 52‐mile length of the San Diego River. The 
completion of the newest path brings the total to 13 paved miles.  

A draft of the San Diego River Park Master Plan, a document that will guide the development of the trail 
and recreation spaces, will be distributed to community members for input in late fall, Robin Shifflet, a 
park designer assigned to the master plan, wrote in an e‐mail. The San Diego Planning Department 
hopes to present the plan to the City Council late next year.  

But construction on the River Park can proceed only if there is enough money – something that is far 
from being a sure thing in the current economic climate. The conservancy hoped to have raised $164.5 
million for projects along the river by the end of the year, according to its strategic plan, but Nelson said 
the group is not on pace to reach that goal.  

The River Conservancy has been working with the San Diego River Coalition, an organization of 70 
community groups that is also trying to get the beach‐to‐mountain path completed.  

“That's what's sometimes frustrating, when you have so much community support and you don't have 
every dollar that you need to get it done,” Nelson said. “As long as we can continue to leverage the 



energy and enthusiasm of those 70 organizations, it's safe to say that the River Park will continue to 
build momentum.”  

The newest section, a 10‐foot‐wide bikeway topped with porous concrete and designed with erosion 
control in mind, has been carefully constructed to protect the environment.  

Officials hope the Ocean Beach Bike Path/Hotel Circle North Bikeway – which bridges bustling Hotel 
Circle and the coast – will ease traffic by giving visitors the option to bike to their destination, rather 
than brave congested streets.  

Nelson noted that the River Park is in line with the San Diego Association of Governments' Regional 
Transportation Plan, possibly providing a novel source of additional funding. He said he has had several 
conversations with SANDAG leaders about whether the projects along the river could qualify for the 
association's funding in addition to “the traditional bond sources.”  

“It becomes more than just a bike path and becomes a transportation corridor for people to get to 
work,” Nelson said.  

For decades, the river was considered a nuisance by developers constructing buildings adjacent to the 
waterway, said Richard Dhu, a project manager for the San Diego River Park Foundation.  

“The river has been neglected for years,” he said. “The buildings are built with their backs turned to the 
river, as opposed to celebrating it. Instead of turning our back to the river and trying to close it off, we 
should try to open it up and connect it.”  

Champions of the project are confident the trail will reach from the waterway's headwaters near Julian 
to the Pacific Ocean someday.  

But, while taking a breather from exercising on the path, Donna Boss, 53, said she is satisfied with the 
length of the path as is.  

Fifty‐two miles, she said with a laugh, “would be a little bit too far for me. I'm too old for that.”  

Julia Love is a Union‐Tribune intern.  

Related Terms: Mission Valley, Union‐Tribune, SD MTS, Santee, Pacific Ocean, Ocean Beach, North 
County, Lakeside, Hotel Circle  

 

http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/mission-valley/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/union-tribune/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/sd-mts/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/santee/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/pacific-ocean/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/ocean-beach/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/north-county/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/north-county/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/lakeside/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/hotel-circle/


 
 
 
Group to overhaul 24-year-old community plan 
 
By Julia Love 

2:00 a.m. July 23, 2009 

MISSION VALLEY — Mission Valley was a different place in 1985.  

Huge plots of land remained undeveloped. The San Diego River was considered a flood project, not an amenity. 
Thousands commuted to the area, but few called it home.  

Just about the only thing that hasn't changed since then is the community plan.  

After years of waiting, the Mission Valley Planning Group has finally begun the process of overhauling the document, 
which was last revised 24 years ago. The San Diego City Council approved $1.2 million in funding for the two-year 
project as part of the fiscal 2010 budget.  

Residents and local government officials say they are eager to start working on the plan – a legally binding document 
that guides development in the area.  

“I like to refer to our community plan as kind of the road map for Mission Valley,” said Linda Kaufman, chair of the 
planning group. “If you have an outdated road map, it's hard to move forward.”  

Kaufman said her group began updating the community plan six years ago, but the project lost its funding and the 
senior planner overseeing the process retired. Because traffic studies used in that draft are outdated, the group must 
start from scratch with this version, she said.  

San Diego updated its general plan last year, clearing the way for neighborhoods to bring their own plans into the 
21st century. But Brian Schoenfisch, a senior planner coordinating the Mission Valley effort, said creating a new 
vision for this community will be especially complicated.  

“Mission Valley is almost like a downtown where residents from all over the county and tourists come together,” he 
said. “Whether you're living here or you're just passing through, you have an opinion on Mission Valley.”  

Congested streets. Overdevelopment. No real sense of community. Once they started rattling off Mission Valley's 
problems, residents almost couldn't stop.  

“I would like it to become a balanced community where there's reasonable development but people can live here 
peacefully,” said retired resident Julie Corwin, 62. “That's not what we have today.”  

Schoenfisch said many of the area's troubles stem from the fact that it was primarily a commercial district when the 
community plan was last updated. Mission Valley is now a “mixed-use community” with a blend of neighborhoods and 
shopping centers, but the outdated document does not call for the services residents need, Schoenfisch said. And 
community leaders couldn't have imagined the environmental challenges – river preservation among them – that now 
top the list of concerns.  



“Just as life evolves, so does the community . . . and the idea of keeping the community plan updated is to keep that 
vision current instead of trying to play catch-up,” Councilwoman Donna Frye said.  

Creating more trails along the San Diego River could remedy many of Mission Valley's woes, giving residents the 
option of walking or biking to work, connecting the area's developments and fostering a sense of community among 
residents, Schoenfisch said.  

The San Diego River Park Draft Master Plan, which outlines a network of parks and trails along the waterway, will be 
incorporated into the community plan when it is completed.  

“People are looking for new ways to create a sense of community, and the river . . . will be the organizing principle for 
making that happen,” said Rob Hutsel, executive director of the San Diego River Park Foundation.  

Lynn Mulholland, chair of the Mission Valley Community Council, said the community's growth must come to a halt 
until infrastructure improves. But she doubts the new plan will be enough to reign in developers.  

“We have enough statutes on the books to ensure a healthy Mission Valley,” said Mulholland, a retiree who has lived 
in the area since 1975. “We need council members that are not beholden to developers.”  

Frye and others say that when proposed construction projects clash with the plan, developers obtain amendments 
with little difficulty. The revisions partially explain why Mission Valley just dedicated Sefton Field as its first public 
park, though developers have been required to create recreation spaces for decades.  

Quarry Falls, a massive development that will add almost 5,000 homes to Mission Valley, was approved by the City 
Council through an amendment to the community plan, Frye said.  

But Quarry Falls developer Tom Sudberry said revising the plan was challenging, and he does not think it will be easy 
for developers to circumvent the updated document.  

“I think it would be difficult to come in with an amendment after it has just been updated, but it can be done,” Frye 
said.  

Corwin said she is concerned that the Mission Valley Planning Group has an overrepresentation of development 
interests who might prioritize the needs of their employers over the needs of the community when drafting the plan. 
Kaufman, for one, is a commercial leasing manager for H.G. Fenton Co.  

In addition, the group meets Wednesdays at noon, which might keep residents who work from attending, Corwin said.  

Schoenfisch said community input will be essential. A stakeholders group will discuss proposals in monthly public 
meetings this fall, and the opinions of audience members will be noted, along with those of the panelists.  

Frye said she regrets some of the development that has taken place in Mission Valley, but she said it's not too late to 
right the course – and the community plan update may make it possible.  

“You kind of go back in time and say, 'Golly, I wish we could have done it in a different way,' ” Frye said. “We can't go 
back and change it, but we can still make it a whole lot better for the people that live in and visit Mission Valley.”  

Julia Love is a Union-Tribune intern.  

RELATED TERMS: MISSION VALLEY, UNION-TRIBUNE, SD CITY COUNCIL, DONNA FRYE  

Click here to hide comments 

 
Commenting Terms of Use  

http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/mission-valley/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/union-tribune/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/sd-city-council/
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/tags/donna-frye/
javascript:void(0);
http://www3.signonsandiego.com/terms-of-use/


 



Please join us for our

The San Diego River Park Foundation &
 San Diego River Coalition

September 17th, 2009
5:30pm - 8:00pm

at

Joan B. Kroc Institute for Peace & Justice

Schedule

suggested donation of $10

business casual dress
live music * open bar * food * drinks * fantastic silent auction

Space is limited, RSVP is required

to RSVP, call 619.297.7380
or rsvp@sandiegoriver.org

6:00pm - 6:30pm  :  Special Program in the Peace and Justice Theater
6:30pm - 8:00pm  :  Reception on the Garden of the Sea Terrace                          
    overlooking our San Diego River

University of San Diego
5998 Alcalá Park
San Diego, CA 92110

Celebrating a Year of Accomplishments

8     Anniversary Celebrationth



State of California 
San Diego River Conservancy 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S SUMMARY REPORT 
Meeting of September 3, 2009 

 
 
ITEM: 8 
 
SUBJECT: SAN DIEGO RIVER INVASIVE NON-NATIVE PLANT CONTROL 

AND RIPIARIAN RESTORATION PROGRAM 
 
 

Consideration of Adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration 
  
 -Presentation and Report: Ann Van Leer, Jason Giessow 
 -Resolution 09-08 

 
  
 



Resolution No: 09-08 
RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SAN DIEGO RIVER CONSERVANCY 

 
ADOPTING A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE SAN DIEGO RIVER INVASIVE NON-

NATIVE PLANT CONTROL AND RIPARIAN RESTORATION PROGRAM  
____________________________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the San Diego River Conservancy and its partners are proposing to undertake control of 
invasive non-native plants in the San Diego River Watershed and restore riparian areas with native 
plants; and 
 
WHEREAS, the San Diego River Conservancy (Conservancy) is the state lead agency for compliance 
with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of CEQA, an Initial Study was prepared for the Project which 
determined that as a result of mitigation measures incorporated into the Project, the Project will not result 
in a significant adverse impact upon the environment; and 
 
WHEREAS, a draft Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared and advertised on July 9, 2009 for 
public review closing on August 10, 2009; and  
 
WHEREAS, on September 3, 2009, the Conservancy held a public hearing on the Project: and  
 
WHEREAS, the Conservancy considered the Executive Officer’s report, the Final Mitigated Negative 
Declaration, all comments, recommendations from staff and public testimony; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the San Diego River Conservancy finds the Project consistent with 
the Five Year Strategic and Infrastructure Plan of the San Diego River Conservancy, especially Program 
3, Natural and Cultural Resources Preservation and Restoration, Project 1, Remove Invasive Non-native 
Plants, Restore and Manage the Land: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the San Diego River Conservancy Governing Board of 
Directors, after considering the evidence presented at the public hearing, as follows: 

 
1. The final Mitigated Negative Declaration is the independent judgment of the Board; and  

 
2. The Project will not result in a significant adverse impact upon the environment and the final 

Mitigated Negative Declaration, dated September 3, 2009 is approved. 
 

3. The Board directs the Executive Officer or his designee to file a Notice of Determination within 
five days of the Board’s action on the item. 
 
Approved and adopted this 3rd day of September, 2009. I the undersigned, hereby certify the 
foregoing Resolution Number 09-08 was duly adopted by the San Diego River Conservancy’s 
Governing Board. 

 
 

Following Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: ______ 
Nos: ______ 
Absent: ______ 

 
 
________________________________ 
Michael J. Nelson, Executive Officer 
San Diego River Conservancy 



    EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S SUMMARY REPORT 
    Meeting of September 3, 2009 
 
 
 
ITEM: 8 
 
SUBJECT: SAN DIEGO RIVER INVASIVE NON-NATIVE PLANT 

CONTROL AND RIPARIAN RESTORATION 
PROGRAM (Consideration of Adoption of a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration) 

 
PURPOSE: The Board may consider adoption of Resolution 09-08, 

Adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the San 
Diego River Conservancy’s Invasive Non-Native Plant 
Control and Riparian Restoration Program.  

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
CONSISTENCY: Program 3, Natural and Cultural Resources Preservation 

and Restoration, Project 1: Remove Invasive Non-Native 
Plants, Restore and Manage the Land 

Will facilitate the control of invasive non-native plants 
throughout the San Diego River Watershed with a 
special focus on the river and its tributaries. 

   
BACKGROUND:    As acknowledged in the Conservancy’s Strategic and 

Infrastructure Plan, it is impossible for the Conservancy 
and its partners to make a significant impact on the health 
of the river without addressing the control of invasive 
plants that are outcompeting native plants and, in areas, 
posing a threat to the health and safety of the watershed 
(fire and flood risk). Acknowledging this, the SDRC Board 
has considered this project at previous meetings and 
authorized staff to move forward with programs to control 
invasives plants in the watershed. 
 
Because there are environmental impacts associated 
with working in river systems, even if that work is being 
undertaken to improve and enhance the river, an 
environmental review is required under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
Proposed is a comprehensive programmatic 
environmental document that will provide CEQA 
coverage for the river system instead of project-by-
project. This approach will provide the Conservancy and 
its partners with CEQA clearance for projects designed to 

  1



be consistent with this CEQA document and the 
associated permits. The program was modeled after 
other watershed-wide approaches such as in the San 
Luis Rey Watershed; individual projects will be similar to 
the Dept. of Fish and Game (DFG) project SDRC is 
currently undertaking near Ward Road in Mission Valley. 
 
For this program, riparian habitat in the watershed was 
estimated to be 6,642 acres with an additional 354 acres 
occupied by invasive non-native plants. Total riparian 
habitat after control and restoration would be 6,996 
acres. The program involves the control of Arundo Donax 
and other invasive species and re-vegetation by planting 
native species. The typical restoration process for Arundo 
begins in the fall, which avoids or minimizes impacts to 
the breeding and reproductive seasons for wildlife, fish 
and native plants. All control projects will be designed to 
minimize negative impacts to the environment. 
 
The first project to be carried out under this 
environmental document will be by San Diego State 
University, which will undertake an invasive plant control 
program on City of San Diego-owned land at the Carlton 
Oaks Golf Course, using part of the Conservancy’s Prop 
40 funds set aside for the river. Additional work will occur 
on CalTrans property under I-15 directly downstream of 
the DFG Ward Road project. 
 
Additionally, Conservancy staff is currently working with 
the County Water Authority, which must implement a 
restoration project in the river to gain compliance with 
offsite enhancement/restoration requirements of a 
Cleanup and Abatement Order. 
  
SDRC will continue to work with partners on the 
watershed to add other complementary invasive control 
projects to the watershed based control program.  
Specific project areas will be re-submitted for SANDAG 
funding this fall and State bond funded grant programs 
will be tracked to assure no remaining funding 
opportunities are missed. 
 
 

  2



  3

COMMENTS ON THE  
INITIAL STUDY AND  
MITIGATED NEGATIVE  
DECLARATION: 
 

The Conservancy received no comments on the Initial 
Study or Mitigated Negative Declaration for this program. 
 

THIS ACTION: The action is for the Governing Board to approve 
resolution 09-08 adopting a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration for the San Diego River Invasive Non-Native 
Plant Control and Riparian Restoration Program  

                
SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS: Resolution 09-08 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 09-08  



                  INITIAL STUDY 

 
 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        1 

PROJECT TITLE:  San Diego River Watershed Invasive Non-native Plant Control and 

Habitat Restoration Program 
 

PROJECT NUMBER: 09-100         

 

LEAD DIVISION: San Diego River Conservancy  

 

PROJECT PLANNER: Michael Nelson PHONE: (619) 645-3183 

 

CEQA PLANNER: Jason Giessow PHONE: (619) 645-3183 

 

PROJECT LOCATION: The proposed project covers the San Diego River Watershed in San 

Diego County, California. (Figure 1). 

 

PROJECT APPLICANT: San Diego River Conservancy 

 

ADDRESS: 1350 Front Street- Suite 3024, San Diego CA 92101 

 

PHONE: (619) 645-3183 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Invasive non-native plant control for: habitat restoration, water 

conservation, and fire/flood risk reduction. 

 

DECISION MAKER: San Diego River Conservancy Board of Directors 

 

SOURCES OF INFORMATION: (See Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for 

Information References) 

 

RESPONSIBLE/TRUSTEE AGENCIES INVOLVED: California Department of Fish and 

Game; California Regional Water Quality Control Board 

 

LAND USE ENTITLEMENT SUMMARY: 

General Plan Land Use Designation: typically open space, but varies 

Zoning: typically open space, but varies. The project area encompasses many public and private 

lands: no work will occur without a right of entry agreement signed by both the land owner and 

project lead.  Federal Lands are excluded from the program. 

 

INITIAL STUDY DATE: July 7, 2009



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        2 

 

 

Initial Study 

San Diego River Watershed Invasive Non-native Plant Control and 

Habitat Restoration Program 

 

 

July 7, 2009 

 

 
Name:    Michael Nelson 

Organization:    San Diego River Conservancy 

Address:    1350 Front Street, Suite 3024, San Diego CA 92101  

Telephone:   619-645-3183      Fax:     619-238-7068 

Email:    mnelson@sdrc.ca.gov  

Website:   http://sdrc.ca.gov/ 

mailto:mnelson@sdrc.ca.gov


 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Project Name ................................................................................................................................... 5 

Project Location .............................................................................................................................. 5 

Project Description.......................................................................................................................... 5 

Location and Environmental Setting .............................................................................................. 7 

Background on the San Diego River Conservancy......................................................................... 7 

Statutory Objectives .................................................................................................................... 8 

Program Goal .............................................................................................................................. 8 

Surrounding Land Uses and Setting ............................................................................................... 8 

Other Public Agencies whose Approval is Required (e.g., permits, financing approval, or 

participation agreement.) ................................................................................................................ 8 

Treatment of Invasive Non-Native Plants ....................................................................................... 9 

Re-vegetation ................................................................................................................................ 10 

Biological Resources .................................................................................................................... 11 

Measures to Protect Natural Resources ........................................................................................ 12 

Initial Foliar Treatment of Arundo (and other target non-native plants): Herbicide Application

................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Biomass reduction (lowering dead or live Arundo cane and other treated plant biomass) ....... 14 

Re-vegetation (native planting) Activities: Between December 15
th

 and March 15th ............. 15 

Maintenance Activities: Between March 15
th

 and Sep 15
th

 ...................................................... 16 

Species Conservation Measures ................................................................................................ 16 

Performance standards .............................................................................................................. 17 

Yearly work plan and report ..................................................................................................... 17 

Measures to Protect Cultural Resources ....................................................................................... 17 

Records Search.......................................................................................................................... 17 

Field Surveys ............................................................................................................................ 17 

Projects to be Re-designed to Avoid Cultural Resources, if Required ..................................... 17 

Cultural Resource Monitoring .................................................................................................. 17 

Biological Monitoring ................................................................................................................... 18 

Reporting Program ........................................................................................................................ 18 

 

FIGURES 

Figure 1.  San Diego River Watershed: Mapped Riparian Invasive Plants……………...………20 

Figure 2.  San Diego River Watershed: Cities, County and major features ................................. 21 

Figure 3.  San Diego River Watershed Map showing Federally protected species……………...22 

Figure 4.  San Diego River Watershed Habitat Value Model map………………………………23 

Figure 5.  Mixed invasive non-native plants (myoporum, Brazilian peppertree, pampas grass and 

tamarisk): I-5 CalTrans ................................................................................................................. 24 

Figure 6.  Mixed invasive non-native plants (myoporum, Brazilian peppertree, and Canary Island 

Date Palm): I-5 CalTrans .............................................................................................................. 24 

Figure 7.  Pampas grass: CalTrans below Highway 805 .............................................................. 25 

Figure 8.  Arundo donax (giant reed) and tree tobacco: Ward Road trolley station ..................... 25 

Figure 9.  Arundo donax (giant reed) and Mexican fan palms: Ward Road trolley station.......... 26 

Figure 10.  Arundo donax (giant reed): Ward Road, CDFG ecological reserve .......................... 26 

Figure 11.  Arundo donax (giant reed), Canary Island date palm and Mexican fan palm: Camino 

del Rio North, CDFG Ecological Reserve .................................................................................... 27 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        4 

FIGURES (continued) 

Figure 12.  Arundo donax (giant reed) and Mexican fan palm: Camino del Rio, CDFG ecological 

reserve ........................................................................................................................................... 27 

Figure 13.  Arundo donax (giant reed): Camino del Rio North, CDFG ecological reserve ......... 28 

Figure 14.  Arundo donax (giant reed): Camino del Rio North, behind the Home Depot ........... 28 

Figure 15.  Arundo donax (giant reed) and Canary Island date palm: Camino del Rio, behind 

Body Beautiful Car Wash ............................................................................................................. 29 

Figure 16.  Arundo donax (giant reed): near 52, Santee ............................................................... 29 

Figure 17.  Arundo donax (giant reed): CalTrans below 52, Santee ............................................ 30 

 

 

TABLE 

Table 1.  San Diego River Watershed ........................................................................................... 30 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        5 

ENVIRONMENTAL INITIAL STUDY 
 

Project Name   
 

San Diego River Watershed Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Habitat Restoration Program 

 

Project Location  

 
 San Diego River Watershed in San Diego County, California. (Fig. 1 & 2). 

 
Project Description 
 

The San Diego River Conservancy (SDRC) has initiated a watershed based invasive non-native 

plant control and riparian restoration program on the San Diego River Watershed.  The project 

involves grant and mitigation funding to the SDRC and its partners, for the restoration of 

riparian habitat in the San Diego River Watershed through the control of invasive non-native 

plants (mainly Arundo donax and Pampas grass) and the planting of native species (Figure 1).  

Funding sources may include, but are not limited to, the State of California Water Resources 

Control Board, Department of Fish & Game (CDFG), Wildlife Conservation Board, Resources 

Agency, Department of Transportation (Caltrans), Department of Water and Power, Food and 

Agriculture and the federal United States Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS), Natural Resources 

Conservation Service, Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE), Environmental Protection Agency, 

Forest Service; San Diego County, fees and fines, donations, and mitigation projects (either as 

an „In-Lieu-Fee‟ type mitigation program or as specified under separate regulatory agreements 

for the project requiring mitigation). SDRC‟s program may not be used for mitigation without 

the approval of all parties involved: the regulatory agencies, SDRC, the entity requiring 

mitigation, and the owner of the property where work would be occurring. The project area 

encompasses many public and private lands: no work will occur without a right of entry 

agreement signed by both the land owner and project lead (SDRC).  Lands owned by the Federal 

Government (Forest Service, Department of Defense, etc.) are excluded from the program area, 

this Initial Study and the Mitigated Negative Declaration. 

 

Arundo, pampas grass and other invasive non-native plants pose a serious threat to the native 

flora and fauna, and are a significant flood and fire risk to the community (Figures 1 and 3-15). 

The plants have severe and negative impacts on biological, hydrological, and geomorphologic 

functions within the riparian system.  The target invasive non-native plants are not typically 

utilized as a food resource and have poor structure for nesting and use by other organisms as 

shelter.  Arundo and pampas grass out-compete native vegetation forming monotypic stands that 

interfere with native plant succession and establishment.  Arundo and pampas grass alter the 

hydrology by using double the water as native vegetation and filling in areas that would 

otherwise remain open habitat, which is important for regulating flows. Creek and river flow 

capacity is reduced by excessive biomass that cause overbank flows and flooding.  Arundo and 

pampas grass are extremely flammable throughout the year as mature stands contain large 

amounts of dead material.  Stands are also tall and well ventilated, contributing to fast moving 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        6 

hot fires that are carried up into any existing riparian woodland canopy.  Riparian areas with 

extensive amounts of Arundo experience fires frequently, which would otherwise be an unusual 

event.  Some riparian systems with extensive Arundo stands are moving from a natural flood 

regulated system to a fire dominated system, which is drastically altering the ecosystem.  

Flooding is a natural process in a functional riparian ecosystem.  Arundo is, however, altering 

the flood regime by blocking flows with its thick growth, creating unstable banks due to its 

poorly developed root systems that easily fragments, and contributes to bridge and flood control 

structure failure by becoming lodged against bridge pylons and blocking and diverting  flows.  

Eventually enough water backs up against the bridge or other structure causing the structure to 

fail or flows to bypass the structure, causing extensive damage. 

 

Intensive project restoration activities are to be carried out from September 15
th

 to March 15
th

 

(February 15
th

 in coastal sage scrub) which avoids/minimizes impacts to the 

breeding/reproductive season for wildlife, fish and native plants.  Activities may begin as early 

as August 15
th

 if avian surveys demonstrate that bird nesting has been completed, if authorized 

by the regulatory agencies. The typical restoration process for Arundo begins in the fall with 

reduction (mulching by mowers) of target plant biomass.  No biomass is left in the low flow 

channel.  Hand crews cut target plants that are in channel areas or areas that the mower can not 

reach.  No native vegetation is reduced (mowed).  Arundo, tamarisk and other tartget non-native 

vegetation re-sprouts in the spring and a treatment using glyphosate and/or imazypyr herbicide 

occurs (formulations approved by the Environmental Protection Agency for use in riparian areas: 

Rodeo
®
, Aquamaster

® 
and Habitat

®
).  These herbicides are non-toxic to wildlife.  Only target 

non-native plants are treated.  Other target non-native invasive plants (listed in RGP 41) and 

scattered patches of Arundo under ¼ acre may be treated in the fall or early spring and are left 

standing to decompose on site.  In some situations target invasive non-native plants may be 

treated first and then the dead standing biomass will be reduced (mowed).  Reduction of treated 

invasive non-native plants typically occurs in January/February. 

 

All areas that are mowed are re-planted with native woody riparian vegetation (cuttings and/or 

container plants).  Sites that have biomass reduced first, followed by herbicidal treatment of re-

growth, typically have planting in year two or three. Sites that are treated first, followed by 

biomass reduction can often be planted in the first year.  All sites then enter a re-treatment cycle, 

using approved
 
herbicides on any re-sprouting target non-native plants. This is carried out 

annually in the Fall for four to ten years to ensure complete control of target non-native plants 

(including: Arundo, pampas grass, tamarisk, castor bean, perennial pepperweed, Cape ivy etc.).  

Watering and weed control in areas that had biomass reduction and re-vegetation may occur 

from March 16
th

 to September 14
th

, but only in open areas without structures for nesting (as 

specified under FWS and CDFG permits). 

 

This Initial Study (and associated Mitigated Negative Declaration) is similar in format and scope 

to three previous initial studies and mitigated negative declarations adopted by: the California 

Coastal Conservancy on November 4th 2002, the Mission Resource Conservation District in 

September 2006, and County of Orange (to be adopted in May/June 2009), for watershed based 

eradication of Arundo and other invasive non-native plants. This program uses similar control 

and re-vegetation methods that will result in the same benefits to habitat and resource protection.  



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        7 

 

Location and Environmental Setting 

 

SDRC has initiated the development of a watershed wide invasive plant control and riparian 

habitat restoration program.  The watershed is 278,980 acres in size and spans 44 miles from the 

ocean to the Cuyamaca Mountains (Figure 2).  The upper half of the watershed is hills and 

mountains, much of which is under public ownership.  The lower watershed is much more 

urbanized, where the cities of San Diego, El Cajon, and Santee are found. The lower watershed 

area still has large areas of open space such as Mission Trails Park, and the San Diego River 

itself, which supports numerous sensitive species and is a recognized biological linkage (MSCP).  

SDRC seeks to enhance and protect as much of the river as possible for the benefit of natural 

resources and the public. 

Riparian habitat on the San Diego River Watershed is estimated to be 6,642 acres with an 

additional 354 acres occupied by invasive non-native plants.  Total riparian habitat after 

control/restoration would be 6,996 acres. Numerous riparian vegetation series occur within the 

riparian zone, with willow woodlands and mulefat scrub dominating the lower watershed and 

oak woodlands on the upper watershed.  Most of the invasive plant acreage that has been mapped 

to date was found on the lower watershed. The invasive plant acreage is composed of:  Arundo 

donax (giant reed, 124 ac), tamarisk (salt cedar, 88 ac), pampas grass (40 ac), palms (24 ac), 

mixed exotic trees and other species (78ac, Figure 1 and Table 1). The river itself has many 

species including two federally listed species: least Bell‟s vireo and the southwestern willow 

flycatcher. Vireo habitat, in particular, is heavily degraded from I-5 to Lakeside by Arundo 

donax (giant reed).  

Background on the San Diego River Conservancy 

 

SDRC is an independent, non-regulatory agency within the Resources Agency of the State of 

California.  SDRC is governed by an eleven voting member and two non-voting member board 

of state and local representatives, with a primary jurisdiction encompassing the land and water 

within one-half mile on either side of the thread of the San Diego River.  Recent legislation 

extended SDRC‟s jurisdiction to include the river‟s tributaries and other properties within the 

watershed under certain circumstances.  

 

The mission of the SDRC is to preserve and conserve land and water for the enjoyment of 

present and future generations within its jurisdiction.  SDRC partners include San Diego River 

Coalition; San Diego River Park Foundation; Lakeside‟s River Park Conservancy; Senator 

Christine Kehoe; County of San Diego; City of San Diego; City of Santee; Helix Water District; 

Padre Dam Municipal Water District; and the Cleveland National Forest. 

 

On March 24, 2006, the SDRC Board adopted the San Diego River Conservancy Five Year 

Strategic and Infrastructure Plan 2006-2011 (Strategic Plan).  Included in the goals and 

objectives of the Strategic Plan are completion of four major Programs:  

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        8 

 Program 1 - Land Conservation;  

 Program 2- Recreation and Education;  

 Program 3 - Natural and Cultural Resources, Preservation and Restoration; and  

 Program 4 - Water Quality and Natural Flood Conveyance. 

 

In the Strategic Plan, the priority objective and goals under Program 3 - Natural and Cultural 

Resources, Preservation and Restoration, are: 

Statutory Objectives  
Restore and protect wildlife habitat, including wetlands, to benefit native species. Preserve and 

protect cultural and historic resources.  

Program Goal  
Reduce, control, and where feasible, eradicate invasive non-native species while restoring area 

habitats to native function.  

 

Implementation of the Strategic Plans Program 3: Natural Resource Restoration associated with 

“Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Habitat Restoration” is the subject of this CEQA 

document.   

 

Surrounding Land Uses and Setting  
 

The project area for work is the riparian and transitional habitat in the San Diego River 

Watershed.  The riparian habitat along most stream and river courses is not channelized (ie, 

without concrete banks and/or bottoms), and therefore retains much of its natural unmodified 

characteristics.  High urbanization on the lower and middle watershed has lead to modified bank 

sections in many areas and loss of significant portions of the floodplain/riparian zone.  

Additionally there are many culverts, bridges, and crossings that modify function and habitat.  

The upper watershed is much less developed, but there are multiple dams (e.g., El Capitan, 

Cuyamaca, Jennings, San Vicente and Lake Murray) that have significantly modified the 

watershed hydrology. 

 

Multiple interstate highways, roads and rail lines cross the river.  The landscape is a mix of 

predominantly urban areas dominated by residential communities, commercial areas, and open 

space (both protected and unprotected).  The upper watershed is much less developed with open 

space managed by the multiple public agencies including: federal, state, and local agencies.  

Several cities occur within the watershed including San Diego, Santee, Lakeside, El Cajon, and 

La Mesa.   

 

Other Public Agencies whose Approval is Required (e.g., permits, financing 

approval, or participation agreement.) 
 

The program will operate underACOE Regional General Permit 41 (completing the 404 and 401 

processes). The RGP 41 authorizes the control of invasive plants in the waters of the United 

States in the California portion of the Los Angeles District of the Corps of Engineers, if certain 

practices are followed. State Historic Office also reviews the project under this permit.  The 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        9 

FWS (listed species data presented in Figure 2) has completed an informal consultation for the 

lower San Diego River Watershed.  The FWS has determined that no adverse effect to listed 

species is likely as long as minimization and avoidance measures are followed.  For areas where 

the arroyo southwestern toad is found (above El Capitan Dam) a Section 7 consultation would be 

initiated prior to commencement of any work.   

 

SDRC will make an application for a CDFG 1600 Streambed Alteration Agreement in 2009 to 

cover areas below the El Capitan Dam. Conditions in the 1600 Agreement are expected to  be the 

same as those outlined in agreements obtained from the FWS and as found in a previously 

completed 1600 Agreement for a joint project controlling giant reed and re-vegetating with 

natives initiated in 2008 on CDFG land along the San Diego River. All terms and conditions 

(minimization and avoidance measures) of all permits will be followed and annual reports are 

will be prepared. These program conditions, minimization measures and reporting are presented 

starting on page 12 of this Initial Study. 

 

The invasive non-native plant control and riparian restoration program for the San Diego River 

Watershed is based on systematic watershed based (landscape level) control of target species that 

provides long term ecological and resource protection benefits.  This process, along with details 

related to restoration and non-native plant control methods have been developed in coordination 

with CDFG, the United States Geological Service (USGS) Biological Resources Division and 

the FWS.   

 

Treatment of Invasive Non-Native Plants 

 
The invasive plant control program may conduct treatments on target plants (Arundo, tamarisk, 

pampas grass, and other species listed under RGP 41) in either the fall or early spring.  The 

treatment cycle typically involves foliar application of herbicide (an aquatic approved herbicide: 

glyphosate, imazapyr, or a mixture of the two).  Work begins September 15
th

 (or as early as 

August 15
th

 if avian surveys demonstrate that nesting season has been completed) and usually 

ends by early December (when plants are entering dormancy).  As the herbicide is most effective 

when plants are actively growing, treatment may also occur if plants are actively growing prior 

to March 15.
th 

 

 

Biomass reduction (if carried out) may occur either before or after herbicide treatment. Biomass 

reduction is typically required if significant plant biomass is present (plants cover > ¼ acre). For 

Arundo, biomass reduction entails either mowing or hand cutting the Arundo cane.  Hand cut 

Arundo is stacked and mowed, chipped, or left to decompose naturally.  Arundo biomass mulch 

is left within the original footprint of the stand or may be spread over compacted areas (roads, 

parking areas, shoulders, etc).  Areas that have recently burned do not typically require biomass 

reduction; the treated cane may be left standing to decay naturally in place. The treated post fire 

re-sprouting biomass will decay within two to three years- much more rapidly than mature 

unburned Arundo stands.   



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        10 

Re-vegetation 
 

Active re-vegetation will be a component of the enhancement/restoration process for most 

project areas that have mowing and or cutting of target plants.  Effective control of target plants 

is required prior to re-vegetation to avoid situations where re-treatments would harm a 

significant number of plantings.  For areas that are treated first and then biomass is reduced- 

planting may occur in the first year.  Areas that reduced first and then have re-growth treated will 

typically not be planted with natives until the second year. 

 

Plant size varies from 1 gallon/D60 to rose pots (2” x 2”). Plant pallet varies based on presence 

or absence of tree canopy and position in the habitat (near channel, low bench, high bench etc).  

All growth forms of native plants are represented in the plant pallet used: tree, shrub, half shrub, 

vine and perennial herb.  As a class, shrubs dominate the percentage of plants planted in the 

field.  This is due to the fact that tree canopy is frequently still present on control sites- the 

Arundo, tamarisk and pampas grass have pushed out shrub cover and filled in open and herb 

covered areas.  Planting is typically at a density of 300 to 400 plants per acre- with a 5 year goal 

of 250 plants per acre live and established.  Additional „fill in‟ planting occurs in successive 

years on sites until native plant establishment occurs.  Depending on rainfall and water table 

position, plants are usually watered in and left.  Supplemental watering may be needed, but 

occurs by hand and only for the first year.  The goal is to assist native plantings in becoming 

established enough to survive through the summer and fall of the first year.  Once this occurs the 

plants have become established.  Average survival rates vary by species- but typically exceed 50-

70% (as demonstrated through large programs on San Luis Rey Watershed and Carlsbad HU). 

Restored sites typically attain high cover from planted shrubs and trees by year five (often even 

year three), which helps to shade out ruderal weeds that would otherwise begin to migrate into 

the site as the reduced biomass/mulch begins to break down. 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        11 

Typical Site Plant Pallet: 

  

 

Latin name Common Name 

  

Trees  

Platanus racemosa Sycamore 

Populus fremontii Cottonwood 

Quercus agrifolia Coast Live Oak 

Salix laevigata Large leaf willow 

Salix goodingii Black willow 

Salix lasiolepis Arroyo willow 

  

Shrubs  

Baccharis salicifolia Mulefat 

Heteromeles arbutifolia Christmas berry 

Salix exigua Sandbar willow 

Sambucus mexicana Mexican elderberry 

  

Half-shrubs, vines, ground covers  

Artemisia douglasiana Mugwort 

Rosa californica California rose 

Rubus ursinus CA blackberry 

Urtica dioca Hoary nettles 

Vitis girdiana CA grape 

 

Biological Resources 
 
The San Diego River Conservancy‟s invasive non-native plant control and re-vegetation 

program‟s primary goal is to enhance ecological function.  Invasive non-native plants are 

displacing native vegetation, modifying hydrologic functions including sediment transport, water 

use, and flood regimes.  In addition to these severe impacts, non-native plants, particularly 

Arundo, create fire prone conditions within riparian habitat.  Fires occur much more frequently 

and with a greater intensity in stands of Arundo. A systematic and comprehensive invasive plant 

control program will provided a substantial benefit to the native fauna and flora that inhabit the 

watershed. 

 

The program is utilizing avoidance measures and methods that have been developed with FWS 

and CDFG over the past 10 years on several other large watershed eradication programs (see 

below).  The main „method‟ is avoidance; that is, not being in habitat areas during active 

breeding of wildlife.  Impacts to native vegetation are also minimized and avoided by following 

the measures.  The resulting impacts to the habitat are minor and temporary- and the resulting 

benefit is substantial.  Controlling the target non-native species and re-vegetating areas where 

target non-native plants were dense, restores ecological function to the site.  This is why these 

activities are routinely counted as mitigation and restoration for development, discharge and 

other damaging events that degrade ecological function. 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        12 

 

The San Diego River Watershed is a critical part of the Natural Communities Conservation Plans 

that cover San Diego County.  These plans include: County Multiple Species Conservation Plan 

(approved 1997: http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/dplu/mscp) and the East County Multiple Species 

Conservation Plan (in development).  These plans outline the significant biological resources that 

are found in the region and on the San Diego River Watershed. The San Diego River Watershed 

is an important corridor allowing movement of wildlife both east/west (along the river) and 

north/south (connecting watersheds across the region).  The TransNet Environmental Mitigation 

Program (http://www.sandag.org) is funding significant biological monitoring, management, and 

land conservation under the NCCP planning areas.  These programs are consistent with the San 

Diego River Conservancy‟s Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Re-vegetation Program 

which seeks to implement habitat improvement in a responsible and sustainable manner. 

 

The San Diego River Watershed has numerous Federal and State listed species including: 

southwest arroyo toad, southwestern willow flycatcher, least Bell‟s vireo, and CA gnatcatcher 

(Figure 2).  An informal consultation with FWS has already been completed (Appendix 1).  FWS 

has indicated that the measures listed below and the benefits of the project will protect and are 

unlikely to harm listed species.  Impacts to listed species are unlikely as long as conditions 

outlined in FWS and CDFG permits are followed.   

 

Measures to Protect Natural Resources 

 
The types of habitat restoration and enhancement activities carried out under this program are 

considered by regulatory agencies (CDFG, the  FWS and the ACOE) to be a form of mitigation 

for impacts to riparian habitat (e.g. for small permanent and temporary impacts).  The end result 

of this project will be habitat improvement for sensitive species in the project area.  FWS and 

CDFG permits outline specific impact minimization and avoidance measures to protect these 

listed species, migratory birds, other wildlife and native plants.  The following avoidance and 

minimization measures are in place to assure that there will be less than significant impacts to 

natural resources: 

 

 Non-native plant control methods will be used that minimize impacts to non-target native 

vegetation.  These methods include: preparing target plants for herbicide application by 

separating them from native vegetation, using targeted foliar application of herbicide by 

crews on foot, using highly qualified contractors who have experience treating non-native 

plants in sensitive riparian habitat, and using herbicides that are approved for use in 

wetlands (aquatic approved formulations of glyphosate and imazapyr) which have no 

negative impact on wildlife species (Appendix 1).  All mixing of herbicides and 

maintenance of equipment will occur only in areas that are devoid of native vegetation, 

that are adjacent to existing roads, and have compacted disturbed soils.  These areas are 

not sensitive species habitat, they are not adjacent to the river channel, and they have no 

cover of native woody vegetation. 

 

 A biologist will oversee work activities to assure that conditions of CDFG and FWS 

permits are being followed.  No restoration activities with heavy equipment shall occur 

http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/dplu/mscp
http://www.sandag.org/


 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        13 

during the designated breeding season for migratory bird species March 15
th

 to 

September 15
th

 (work can be initiated as early as August 15
th

, if avian surveys 

demonstrate that nesting has been completed on site). 

 

 Annual reports documenting work and compliance will be provided to regulatory 

agencies that have issued permits: ACOE,  CDFG, and FWS .  Future work areas for the 

next year will also be clearly indicated in annual reporting.  All permits clearly outline 

work conditions, and minimization & avoidance measures.  Regulatory agencies, SDRC 

project managers and the project biologist assure compliance with these conditions.  Any 

violations would result in termination of active work and possible fines or a request for 

compensatory mitigation. 

 

Initial Foliar Treatment of Arundo (and other target non-native plants): Herbicide 

Application 

1) No more then three crews will be active on the watershed at one time. 

2) Only one crew will operate at a given site at a time (sites are separated by at least one 

mile- and are usually on entirely different reaches of the watershed). 

3) Crew size will not exceed 16 individuals, and no more then five people will be working 

together at a given spot. 

4) Herbicide application will occur with either backpack sprayers (3 gallon) or hand held 

power sprayers.  Power sprayers are moved by ATV‟s and consist of a small gas powered 

engine (3 hp) on a trailer with a tank/reservoir (50gal useable volume). 

5) To reduce the chance/impact of spillage, work crews can only mix herbicide, refill power 

sprayers (using concentrate and water: i.e. mixing), load mixed chemical into ATV‟s (for 

refilling backpack sprayers or power sprayers), and refuel (ATV‟s or power sprayer) in 

staging areas. 

6) Staging areas are disturbed sites such as roads, shoulders, graded areas, or sites with 

compacted soil that support no vegetation or weedy vegetation. 

7) Foliar spraying will not occur when ambient wind speeds exceed 5 miles per hour. 

8) Crew members will avoid wading through streams whenever possible. 

9) Each crew may use up to 2 ATV‟s (typically one is used- to move mixed herbicide to 

crews in the field). 

10) ATV‟s will not drive in channel areas. 

11) ATV‟s will operate only in open areas- woody vegetation (>1” DBH) will not be cleared 

or driven upon. 

12)  Site preparation is carried out prior to treatment of Arundo.  Preparation entails 

separating, or creating a space, between stands of Arundo and native vegetation.  This 

allows the Arundo to be treated without affecting the native woody vegetation.  The space 

between Arundo and native vegetation is created by pushing, detangling and/or trimming 

the vegetation.  Both Arundo and native woody vegetation may be trimmed.  However, 

woody vegetation may not be trimmed that is in excess of four inches in diameter. 

Excessive trimming of Arundo is not usually carried out because this triggers re-sprouting 

which results in a much longer re-treatment cycle (before vegetation removal, see species 

conservation measures). 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        14 

13) All regulations involving use of herbicides will be followed including BMP‟s.  All 

applicators will be licensed and certified. Aquatic herbicide formulations will be used 

when near open water including all additives (spreading agents and dyes). 

14) A marking dye will be used to assure that drift or overspray onto non-target vegetation is 

not occurring. 

15) All garbage and waste material generated by the work crew will be removed from the 

site. 

16) Work normally is initiated after September 15
th

, but work may be initiated after August 

15
th

 if avian surveys determine that nesting has been completed for the season 

(notification to CDFG and FWS must occur). 

 

Biomass reduction (lowering dead or live Arundo cane and other treated plant biomass) 

Large Arundo stands (>1/4 acre) are usually cut or mowed to allow for active native plant 

restoration and to speed up the decomposition of the dead Arundo cane. Scattered smaller stands 

are left to decompose naturally (they are left standing). Typically all biomass reducing methods 

are used on sites with large stands of Arundo due to factors including: amount and distribution of 

native woody vegetation, access to the site and site topography, visibility of the site, and input 

from the property owner.   

 

The normal biomass reduction process is: 1) a large mower mows stands, 2) hand crews cut all 

Arundo that mowers could not reduce, 3) a smaller mower mows hand cut Arundo. Some sites 

that do not have mowing access may be cut by hand and chipped.   

 

Biomass reduction occurs from September 15
th

 to March 15
th

, (February 15
th

 in coastal sage 

scrub) but most work is completed by February 15
th

 to allow for replanting. Sites may be mowed 

earlier (after August 15
th

) if avian surveys indicate nesting season is complete. 

 

Mowing: 

Mowing is carried out using a fixed tooth or hammer flail mowing attachment mounted on a 

tractor. The mowing attachment mulches the dead (or live) Arundo cane/pampas grass into a 

layer about 4” thick.  The mowing attachment and tractor do not dig into the soil surface or 

change topography of the site.  All tractors are rubber tired.  Several sizes of tractors are used: 

from a larger 45,000 lb tractor with four large tires (about 56” by 18”) with a mowing implement 

100” wide to a smaller size 8,000 lb tractor with two large (48” x 16”) and two small tires (24” x 

12”) with a mowing implement 74” wide. Live or dead Arundo stands and other non-native plant 

biomass are mowed standing/in place and hand cut biomass is stacked and mowed within the 

footprint of target non-native plants. 

 

1) No native vegetation is mowed. 

2) No mowing occurs in the stream channel. 

3) No mulched/mowed biomass will be placed in the channel. 

4) All mowed material is within the previously existing stands of Arundo (or other non-

native plants); no open habitat or native vegetation will be covered with Arundo mulch.  

Biomass may be stacked and mowed on compacted soils, dirt roads and shoulders that are 

devoid of native vegetation. 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        15 

5) Equipment used during the biomass reduction phase such as tractors with mowing 

attachments, chippers, chainsaws, other hands tools will be staged at areas which are 

located along roads or on degraded areas with no native vegetation.  Compacted dirt lots, 

road shoulders, and old disturbed sites are typically the type of areas that are used for 

staging.   

6) Crew members will avoid wading through streams whenever possible. 

7) All garbage and waste material generated by the work crew will be removed from the 

site. 

8) Work normally is initiated after September 15
th

, but work may be initiated after August 

15
th

 if avian surveys determine that nesting has been completed for the season 

(notification to CDFG and FWS must occur). 

 

Cutting by hand crews:  

Crews cut dead Arundo using chainsaws operated by hand.  Hand tools (loppers and machetes) 

may also be used, but in limited situations. 

 

1) Crews are of 16 or fewer individuals will work in teams of 5 or less.  For each team one 

person cuts and the other team members pull, haul, and stack the cut dead Arundo cane. 

2) No more than one crew will operate at a given site. 

3) No more then three sites will be active on the watershed at once.  

4) Crews typically do not use ATV‟s, but sites far from roads with previously used trails for 

ATV‟s (during the fall herbicide application) may re-use these same access routes in 

open areas. No ATV use can occur in channel areas or in areas with native woody 

vegetation.   

5)  Chippers may be used at sites where mowing is not possible due to site topography.  

Typically this is on tributaries where creeks have deep profiles. Chippers may be staged 

on roads and may chip material onto disturbed/maintained areas outside the creek profile, 

chip into areas where Arundo previously existed, or ship into containers for hauling off 

site. 

6) Crew members will avoid wading through streams whenever possible. 

7) Cut Arundo stalks will be stacked and dried away from streams or wet areas to prevent 

reinfestation. 

8) All garbage and waste material generated by the work crew will be removed from the 

site. 

9) Work normally is initiated after September 15
th

, but work may be initiated after August 

15
th

 is avian surveys determine that nesting has been completed for the season 

(notification to CDFG and FWS must occur). 

 

 

Re-vegetation (native planting) Activities: Between December 15
th

 and March 15th 

1) No more than two crews will be active on the watershed at one time. 

2) Only one crew will operate at a given site at a time (sites are separated by at least one 

mile- and are usually on entirely different reaches of the watershed). 

3) Crew size will not exceed 12 individuals. 

4) Each crew may use up to 2 ATV‟s to move plants from staging areas to planting 

locations. ATV‟s typically drive only in areas that have been mowed (on dead Arundo or 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        16 

pampas grass mulch). Some sites that are flat and connected to roads, may allow use of a 

4 wheel drive truck to access mowed areas and deliver plants. 

5) ATV‟s will not drive in channel areas. 

6) ATV‟s will operate only in open areas, usually on mowed dead Arundo mulch- no woody 

vegetation (>1” DBH) will be cleared or driven upon. 

7) Equipment used during the re-vegeatation phase such as ATVs and hands tools will be 

staged at areas which are located along roads or on degraded areas with no native 

vegetation.  Compacted dirt lots, road shoulders, and old disturbed sites are typically the 

type of areas that are used for staging.   

8) Crew members will avoid wading through streams whenever possible. 

9) All garbage and waste material generated by the work crew will be removed from the 

site. 

 

Maintenance Activities: Between March 15
th

 and Sep 15
th

  

1) No areas may be worked in that have vegetation structure suitable for nesting (work only 

in mowed areas with new plantings). 

2) No powered equipment may be used at the restoration sites (only watering and treatments 

with backpacks). The water truck does have a gas powered pump, but this will operate 

along access roads or in staging areas.   

3) Avian monitors will be used as requested. 

4) Equipment used during the maintenance phase such as trucks, ATVs, and hands tools will 

be staged at areas which are located along roads or on degraded areas with no native 

vegetation.  Compacted dirt lots, road shoulders, and old disturbed sites are typically the 

type of areas that are used for staging. 

5) Crew members will avoid wading through streams whenever possible. 

6) All garbage and waste material generated by the work crew will be removed from the 

site. 

 

 

Species Conservation Measures 
Biomass reduction and use of power equipment in riparian habitat will occur outside the 

breeding season for the federally endangered least Bell‟s vireo (March 15
th

 to September 15
th

) 

and the endangered southwestern willow flycatcher (May 1
st
 to September 15

th
). 

 

Biomass reduction using tractors with mowing attachments that occurs between February 15
th

 

and March 15
th

 will be pre-surveyed for raptors if suitable structure exists on site for their 

nesting.   

 

Work may be initiated as early as August 15
th

, but avian surveys must be completed for the 

project area and determine that all nesting has been completed.  CDFG and FWS would be 

notified of survey results and the intent to initiate work prior to September 15
th

. 

 

Biomass reduction (usually of treated pampas grass) and use of power equipment in coastal sage 

scrub will occur outside the breeding season for the federally threatened coastal California 

gnatcatcher (February 15
th

 to August 30
th

). 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        17 

Performance standards 

Target non-native vegetation will be less then 1% cover by year five (5).  Areas where biomass 

reduction occurred and that were re-planted with native vegetation will have a minimum 

established plant density of 250 plants per acre by year five (5). 

 

Yearly work plan and report 

Each summer (July 15
th

) a „Work Plan and Report‟ outlining the expected non-native plant 

control and re-vegetation for the current year will be submitted.  This will allow CDFG, FWS 

and ACOE to remain aware of the intended work program each fall.  The Work Plan and Report 

will also detail what work was completed in the field. Reports will have verbal descriptions of 

planned and completed work as well as site photos and GIS maps with specific acreages of 

proposed and/or completed non-native plant control and native re-vegetation work 

 

Measures to Protect Cultural Resources 

In the Strategic Plan, the priority goals under Program 3 - Natural and Cultural Resources, 

Preservation and Restoration, include restoring and protecting wildlife habitat, as proposed in 

this program AND preserving and protecting cultural resources. Both aspects are primary 

objectives of the San Diego River Conservancy. Accordingly, this program to control invasive 

non-native plants and restore the river to native function incorporates measures to protect and 

enhance the protection of cultural resources concurrent with restoration of biological resources. 

Records Search 

It is SDRC‟s goal to compete a historical record‟s search for the entire San Diego River 

Watershed by the end of 2010. At a minimum, for or each site undertaken as part of this 

program, a site specific historical records search will occur at the South Coast Information 

Center. The search shall include the expectation and probabilities of discovery of historical 

resources within ¼ mile of the target site(s) during program implementation.   

Field Surveys 

If a proposed project site is identified in the records search as not having been surveyed for 

historical resources (prehistoric and historical archaeological sites), a qualified archaeologist 

shall conduct a field survey of the site. 

Projects to be Re-designed to Avoid Cultural Resources, if Required 

 Projects will be redesigned to avoid any historical resources identified during the records search 

and field survey, unless they are isolated artifacts. 

 

Cultural Resource Monitoring 

As noted in the environmental checklist, any mowing and restoration work near or within 

registered cultural sites will have a certified archeologist and a cultural monitor on site to assure 

that no impacts to cultural resources occur. If archaeological or cultural features or materials are 

identified by the archaeologist during the mowing, work will stop immediately in that area. No 

archaeological or cultural materials will be collected. Work will be diverted away from the 

sensitive areas, which will remain intact. If approved by the archaeological monitor, hand cutting 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        18 

of Arundo and other invasive plants may take place around identified milling features or other 

cultural resource/areas. Plant biomass will be carried to areas with no sensitive resources and 

mulching will occur at that location 

 

Biological Monitoring 

 
Two types of monitoring will occur: on site monitoring during implementation of restoration 

activities and site performance monitoring. 

 

On site monitoring during project implementation will be performed by an experienced field 

biologist.  This biologist must be familiar with both native and non-native vegetation, have over 

120 hours of avian monitoring experience, and be able to identify least Bell‟s vireo and CA 

gnatcatcher by sight and call.  The biologist must also be able to identify nesting activity for 

raptors if they are monitoring sites between February 15
th

 and March 15
th

 for biomass reduction 

using heavy equipment (i.e. mowing- but this activity will be scheduled to occur prior to 

February 15
th

 when possible). The biologist will establish buffers as outlined under species 

conservation measures in the CDFG 1600 permit.  A summary of monitoring activities will be 

included in the annual Work Plan and Report.  An avian biologist may also conduct surveys to 

determine if all nesting activity has been competed on site- this would allow work to begin 

earlier then the normal September 15
th

 start date.  CDFG and FWS would be notified of survey 

results and the intent to initiate work prior to September 15
th

. Work may not start prior to August 

15
th

. 

 

Site performance monitoring will occur annually to assess effectiveness of treatments and re-

vegetation effort.  This monitoring will include photos of the site and field estimates of treatment 

success by species and survival of native plantings.  This data will be presented in the annual 

report that is submitted to FWS, CDFG, and ACOE.  Additional monitoring may also occur as 

specified under specific grants or mitigation programs (In-Lieu-Fee or off site mitigation 

requirements).  This information will also be available to regulatory agencies.  Monitoring data 

will be used to determine when re-treatments should occur and when re-vegetation is to occur 

(both initial and fill in planting).  The goal of monitoring is to assure project success (<1% target 

non-native plant cover and >250 native plants per acre by year 5). 

 
Reporting Program 

 
Each summer (July 15

th
) an annual „Work Plan and Report‟ outlining the expected non-native 

plant control and re-vegetation for the current year will be submitted.  The annual report will 

document work and compliance and will be provided to regulatory agencies that have issued 

permits: ACOE,  , and FWS.  This will notify agencies of the intended work program areas for 

each year and allow modification of work activities if necessary. 

 

The annual report will clearly out line what work has occurred in the current year and what work 

is planned in the next year.  Reporting on completed work will include a discussion of what 

treatments/control activities occurred (both initial and re-treatments), what re-vegetation has 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        19 

occurred and monitoring/success of efforts.  Photo documentation, non-native plant control 

effectiveness (percent reduction in cover of target plants) and planting success (percent survival 

and estimated per acre density) will be provided.  Detailed GIS maps will clearly indicate what 

areas on each watershed unit within the San Juan Hydrologic Unit had work on them.   

 

Proposed work will be outline on GIS maps indicating likely work areas for the current year.  

Work areas will be funded under a variety of programs including but not-limited to: grant funded 

(state, federal or local), mitigation programs (In-Lieu-Fee, fines, off site mitigation 

requirements), and general funds. 

 

 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        20 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        21 

  

Figure 2.  San Diego River Watershed: Cities, County and major features. 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        22 
 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        23 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        24 

 
 

Figure 5.  Mixed invasive non-native plants (myoporum, Brazilian peppertree, pampas grass 

and tamarisk): I-5 CalTrans. 

 

 
 

Figure 6.  Mixed invasive non-native plants (myoporum, Brazilian peppertree, and Canary 

Island Date Palm): I-5 CalTrans. 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        25 

 
 

Figure 7.  Pampas grass: CalTrans below Highway 805. 

 

 
 

Figure 8.  Arundo donax (giant reed) and tree tobacco: Ward Road trolley station. 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        26 

 
 

Figure 9.  Arundo donax (giant reed) and Mexican fan palms: Ward Road trolley station. 

 
 

Figure 10.  Arundo donax (giant reed): Ward Road, CDFG ecological reserve. 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        27 

 
 

Figure 11.  Arundo donax (giant reed), Canary Island date palm and Mexican fan palm: Camino 

del Rio North, CDFG Ecological Reserve. 

 

 
 

Figure 12.  Arundo donax (giant reed) and Mexican fan palm: Camino del Rio, CDFG ecological 

reserve. 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        28 

 

 
Figure 13.  Arundo donax (giant reed): Camino del Rio North, CDFG ecological reserve. 

 

 
 

Figure 14.  Arundo donax (giant reed): Camino del Rio North, behind the Home Depot. 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        29 

 
 

Figure 15.  Arundo donax (giant reed) and Canary Island date palm: Camino del Rio, behind 

Body Beautiful Car Wash. 

 

 
 

Figure 16.  Arundo donax (giant reed): near 52, Santee . 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        30 

 

 
 

Figure 17.  Arundo donax (giant reed): CalTrans below 52, Santee. 

 

 

Table 1.  San Diego River Watershed Acreage Summary 
 

Summary of acreage of individual invasive non-native plants within the San Diego River Watershed.  

Areas mapped include most riparian zones and undeveloped upland areas; additional acreage exists in 

urbanized areas. All mapping is of “fully infested stands” as defined by RGP 41 (>80% cover). 

 

Species/Type 
 

Type 
Acreage 

Arundo  124 

Brazilian pepper tree Tree 14 

Canary island date palm Palm 4 

Eucalyptus Tree 20 

Mexican fan palm Palm 20 

Pampas grass  40 

Perennial pepperweed  2 

Tamarisk Shrub 88 

Other inv non-natives  42 

 Total: 354 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        31 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL  

ANALYSIS CHECKLIST 
 

ISSUES & SUPPORTING DATA 

SOURCES: 

Potential 

Significant 

Effect 

Less than 

Significant 

w/ 

Mitigation 

Less than 

Significant 

Impact 

No 

Impact 

1. LAND USE & PLANNING. Would the project:     

a) Conflict with general plan designation or zoning?      

No impact.  The project will work within multiple zoning areas (residential, commercial and open space) and various areas covered under 
the general plan. However the project does not change and land use designation or create a new land use, as nothing is constructed and no 

changes in rights of use occur.  Project activities may occur on both public and private lands- but only with clear „right of entry‟ or 

authorization from the property owner or entity managing the land. 

b) Conflict with applicable environmental plans or policies of agencies 

with jurisdiction over the project?      

No impact.  The proposed project would comply with existing land use plans.  No construction, land use change, or change in zoning would 

occur.  The program facilitates Cities, the County and other entities in complying with environmental regulations by creating a watershed 
based program that controls non-native vegetation.  No work occurs without explicit permission from persons or the entity owning lands 

where project activities would occur. This project will enhance the quality and quantity of riparian habitat.  This project implements 

portions of regional plans related to control of invasive non-native plants for water conservation, habitat enhancement and fire/flood risk 
reduction.  

c) Disrupt or divide the physical arrangement of an established 

community (e.g. low income, minority)?     

No impact.  There will be no physical structures built.  

d) Conflict with adjacent, existing or planned land uses?      

No impact.  The project does not involve construction or change existing land use. 

 

2. AGRICULTURE. Would project: 
    

a) Convert Farmlands listed as "Prime", "Unique" or of "Statewide 

Importance," as shown on the State Farmland Mapping and 

Monitoring Program, to non-agricultural use?   
    

No impact.  The project does not convert farmland to non-agricultural use. 

b) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to 

their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland to 

non-agricultural use?  

 

    

No impact.  Very few areas of farmland exist adjacent to parts of the riparian floodplain that will be restored; however the project will have 

no affect on these adjacent farmlands.  All restoration activities will be conducted within existing openspace/riparian habitat.  

 

3. POPULATION & HOUSING. Would project: 
    

a) Cumulatively exceed adopted regional or local population 

projections?      

No impact.  The proposed project does not affect population growth. 

b) Induce substantial growth in an area directly or indirectly through 

project in an undeveloped area or extension of major 

infrastructure?  

    

No impact.  The proposed project does not directly or indirectly affect population growth. 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        32 

c) Displace existing housing affecting a substantial number of 

people?      

No impact.  People would not be displaced as a result of this project. 

 

4. GEOPHYSICAL. Would project result in or expose 

people to impacts involving: 

   
 

a) Local fault rupture?      

No impact.  No project related activities could rupture an earthquake fault.  The project area is open space in riparian habitat.  The project 

will not include structures for human occupancy or facilities that would be considered essential to sustain life, so the project would not 
expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects related to these hazards.  

b) Seismicity: ground shaking or liquefaction?     

No impact.  The project site is not located within a known liquefaction area and it is unlikely for the project to be affected by seismic-

related ground failure.  

c)  Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic 

tanks or alternative waste water disposal systems where sewers are 

not available for the disposal of waste water?  

    

No impact.  The proposed project would not require water or sewer service, septic tanks, or alternative wastewater disposal.  

d)  Landslides or mudslides?      

No Impact.  The location of project activities is relatively flat and the project area would not be subject to landslides. 

e)  Erosion, changes in topography or unstable soil conditions from 

excavation, grading or fill?      

No Impact.  The restoration project does not disturb the soil surface and therefore will not result in substantial erosion or loss of topsoil. 
Areas with stands of Arundo and other target non-native plants that are mowed will have a layer of mulch covering the soil surface.  This 

mulch layer, existing root structure of treated plants and re-vegetation with native plants make soil erosion unlikely.  

f)  Subsidence of the land?      

No impact.  The site is not located near unstable geologic units.   

g) Expansive soils?      

No impact.  The site is not located in an area known for expansive soils.  

h) Unique geologic or physical features?      

No impact.  The project will not alter any unique geologic or physical features within the project area. 

 

5. HYDROLOGY & DRAINAGE. Would the 

project: 

   
 

a) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, 

including the alteration of the course of a stream or river, in 

manner which would result in:  
    

i) substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site?     

No Impact.  The restoration project will not change or modify the low flow channel position.  No structures or bank channel modifications 

will occur as part of the project.  The soil surface will not be disturbed; therefore no substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site will 

occur.  

 ii) a substantial increase in the rate or amount of surface runoff 

in manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site?      

No Impact.  The restoration project will not change or modify the low flow channel position. No construction structures or bank channel 

modifications will occur as part of the project.  The risk of flooding will be reduced by the restoration project through the reduction of 

Arundo and pampas grass biomass in the flood zone.  Arundo is documented as increasing flood risk in riparian areas.  

b) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity 

of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide 

substantial additional sources of polluted runoff?  
    

No Impact.  The project will not contribute to run-off water.  



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        33 

c) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which would 

impede or redirect flood flows?  
    

No Impact.  The project does not involve the constructions of any structures.  

d) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or 

death involving flooding, including flooding as a result of the 

failure of a levee or dam, or inundation by seiche, tsunami, or 

mudflow?  

    

No impact.  The project would not expose people to seiche, tsunami, or mudflow.  

 

6. WATER QUALITY. Would the project: 
    

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge 

requirements?      

No impact.  Restoration activities will not impact channel areas with water flow or result in the discharge of any contaminants.  No soil 

disturbance will occur on site and no biomass will be placed in the active river/stream channel. Aquatic approved herbicides will be used 
for treatments of non-native plants.  These herbicides are approved for use by open water by the Environmental Protection Agency.  The 

active ingredients are glyphosate and imazypyr which have extremely low toxicity to wildlife (Appendix I).  No direct applications of 

herbicide to water will occur. 

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere with 

groundwater recharge such that there would be a net deficit in 

aquifer volume or a lowering of a local groundwater table level?    
    

No Impact.  Treatments of Arundo and other non-native will result in increased supply of groundwater and increased infiltration which 
will help raise groundwater levels.  Arundo and pampas grass utilize twice as much water as native riparian woody vegetation and 

occupies areas that would have been a mixture of riparian habitat and open spaces.  Completion of the project will provide approximately 

250 acre feet of water per year for increased surface flows and groundwater recharge.  

c) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?      

No Impact. The project will not affect water quality.  Aquatic approved herbicides will be used for treatments of non-native plants.  

These herbicides are approved for use in aquatic habitats by the Environmental Protection Agency.  The active ingredients are 

glyphosate and imazypyr (Appendix I).  Surfactants, when used, are approved for use by open water.  Surfactant products (such as No-
Foam A and Sure Spreader) are approved for use in aquatic systems.  No direct applications of herbicide to water will occur.  Treatments 

do not occur during rain events or when rain is forecast within 24hrs.  Migration of the herbicide into water does not occur at significant 

levels, even when precipitation occurs after treatments have been completed (Appendix I). 

 

7. TRANSPORTATION/CIRCULATION. 

Would the project result in: 

   
 

a) Increased vehicle trips or traffic congestion beyond adopted 

policies and/or forecasts?  
    

No impact.  This project would not significantly increase vehicle trips or traffic congestion. 

b) Exceed, either individually or cumulatively, a level of service 

standard established by the county congestion management agency 

for designated roads or highways?  

    

No impact.   

c) Safety hazards from design features (e.g. sharp curves or 

dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g. farm 

equipment)?  

    

Less than significant impact.  The project would have no effect on area roadway design or cause significant traffic/transportation 

hazards. Work crews will use tractors and other equipment- but in unimproved areas and staging areas.  Any temporary movement of 

equipment or work near roads will be signed. Crews will not stop or divert traffic.  

d) Inadequate emergency access or access to nearby uses?      

No impact.  The project does not propose changes to access in surrounding areas. 

e) Insufficient parking capacity on-site or off-site?      

No impact.  The project will not affect parking capacity. 

f) Hazards or barriers for pedestrians or bicyclists?      



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        34 

No impact.  The project does not involve permanent modification of trails, bike lanes, or road shoulders/sidewalks.  Some areas may 

have improved access once non-native plants are controlled/reduced/and or removed- where non-native plants encroach on these areas.  

Temporary closing of road shoulders/sidewalks may occur while work is carried out- but these effects will be temporary and signage will 
clearly designate work areas. 

g) Conflicts with adopted policies supporting alternative 

transportation (e.g. bus turnouts, bicycle racks)?     

No impact. The project does not conflict with existing transportation policies. 

h) Rail, waterborne or air traffic impacts?      

No impact. The project does not affect rail, waterborne or air traffic. 

i) Change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in 

traffic levels or a change in location that results in substantial 

safety risks?  
    

No impact.  The proposed project would not affect air traffic patterns. 

 

8. AIR QUALITY. Would the project: 
    

a) Exceed any SCAQMD standard or contribute to air quality 

deterioration beyond projections of SCAQMD?      

Less than significant impact.  The proposed project will generate short-term air emissions. Short-term air emissions will occur during 

restoration activities clearing Arundo biomass from the project site.  Some dust is generated when the dried Arundo biomass is mowed; 

however this is a very local and short-term effect.  No soil disturbance will occur, which is typically the main source of particulate air pollution.  
Dust emissions will be well below significant thresholds and generally would occur from Sep 15th to Mar 15th (February 15th in coastal sage).  

No long-term emissions will result from implementation of this project.  

b) Expose sensitive population groups to pollutants in excess of 

acceptable levels?  
    

No impact.  This project will not expose anyone in the populations to pollutants in excess of acceptable levels. 

c) Alter air movement, moisture, or temperature, or cause any 

change in climate?  
    

No impact.  This project will not effect these environmental factors.  The project will substantially reduce the risk of fire and the 
intensity of fire events, if they were to occur, by reducing non-native plant biomass- which is far more substantial and flammable then 

native riparian vegetation.  Reduced fire occurrence and intensity resulting form the project improve air quality. 

d) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of 

people?      

No Impact.  The project would not create offensive odors.  The project areas are typically wildlands or undeveloped open spaces that do not 
affect a substantial number of people.  

 

9. NOISE. Would the project: 
    

a) Increase existing noise levels?      
Less Than Significant Impact. All work will be performed between Sep 15 and Mar 15.  During this time period there may be temporary 
or periodic increases in ambient noise levels due to workers carrying out invasive non-native plant treatments and restoration activities.  

Non-native plant biomass reduction may occur from mid August 15th to early March.  This work will involve the use of chainsaws and a 

tractor with a mowing attachment.  Noise generated from the restoration activities are insignificant due to their short duration and low 
levels in comparison to highway noise and surrounding land uses.  In addition most activities are within undeveloped open space areas 

with limited public use/access. The following avoidance and minimization measures are in place to assure that noise level thresholds are 

not exceeded.  
(1) All construction vehicles or equipment, fixed or mobile, operated within 1,000' of a dwelling shall be equipped with properly 

operating and maintained mufflers. 

(2) All operations shall comply with County and City Codified Ordinances (Noise Control). 
(3) Stockpiling and/or vehicle staging areas shall be located as far as practicable from dwellings. 

 

b) Expose people to noise levels exceeding adopted County standards?      



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        35 

Less Than Significant Impact. Work occurs in wildland and open space areas.  Standard types of equipment are used (tractors, 

chainsaws, etc.).  The proposed restoration activities will occur between 7:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. on Mondays through Saturdays from 

August 15th to March 15th.  All project work would fall within normal working hours.  Restoration activities will be conducted during 
the non-breeding season, thus avoiding noise impacts to endangered species and nesting birds.  Noise levels will comply with City and 

County standards. 

Prior to the commencement of the restoration activities the following Mitigation Measures known as Mitigation Measure 1 will be in 
place to ensure that noise level thresholds are not exceeded. 

(1) All construction vehicles or equipment, fixed or mobile, operated within 1,000' of a dwelling shall be equipped with properly 

operating and maintained mufflers. 
(2) All operations shall comply with County and City Codified Ordinances (Noise Control). 

(3) Stockpiling and/or vehicle staging areas shall be located as far as practicable from dwellings. 

 
c) If located within an airport land use plan or, where such plan has 

not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use 

airport, expose people residing or working in the project area to 

excessive noise levels?  

    

No Impact. The project is not located within an airport land use plan or within two miles of a public airport or public use airport.  

 

10. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would 

the project impact: 

   

 

a) Endangered, threatened or rare species or their habitats (including 

but not limited to plants, fish, insects, animals and birds)?      

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation, Minimization and Avoidance Measures. The type of restoration activities carried out in this project 

are considered by the CA Department of Fish & Game, the US Fish & Wildlife Service and the Army Corps of Engineers to be a form of 

mitigation for impacts to riparian habitat (e.g. for small permanent impacts and temporary impacts).  The result of this project will be habitat 
improvement for federally listed species and other wildlife species in the project area.  FWS consultation (Technical Assistance Letter- Appendix 

1) and CDFG 1600 permit (Streambed Alteration Permit) outline specific impact minimization and avoidance measures to protect listed species, 

other wildlife and plant resources and the habitat in general (these are also provided in the Initial Study).   

 

Prior to the commencement of the restoration activities the following Mitigation Measures known as Mitigation Measure 2 will be in place to 

ensure that there will be less than significant impacts to these species due to the utilization of a methodology that avoids and minimizes 
impacts. 

1. Non-native plant control methods will be used that avoid impacts to non-target native vegetation.  These methods include: preparing 

target plants for herbicide application by separating them from native vegetation, using targeted foliar application of herbicide by crews on 
foot, using highly qualified contractors who have experience treating non-native plants in sensitive riparian habitat, and using herbicides that 

are approved for use in wetlands (aquatic approved formulations of glyphosate and imazapyr) which have no negative impact on wildlife 

species (Appendix 2).  
2. A biologist will oversee work activities to assure that conditions of CDFG and FWS permits are being followed. 

3. Yearly reporting will occur to regulatory agencies outlining completed work and work planned for the current year. 

4. No restoration activities with heavy equipment shall occur during the designated breeding season (March 15th to September 15th) for 
the two endangered bird species occurring in riparian project areas: least Bell‟s vireo (Vireo pusillus bellii), southwestern willow flycatcher 

(Empidonax traillii extimus).  Avian surveys conducted after August 15th that document completion of nesting season may allow work to be 

initiated earlier- but only with consent of FWS/CDFG. 
5. No restoration activities with heavy equipment shall occur during the designated breeding season (February 15th to September 15th) 

for endangered bird species occurring in coastal sage scrub project areas: California gnatcatcher (Polioptila californica californica). 

 
These and many additional measures are described in the Initial Study preceding this Environmental Checklist. 

The threshold of significance that would result in potentially significant impacts occurring to wildlife (death or harassment of listed and unlisted 

wildlife) is unlikely to be breached as the methods were developed in a manner to avoid impacts to wildlife. Work activities occur when migratory 
species are not physically present on site, and activities are not occurring during breeding season when impacts to wildlife would be greater. 

Impacts to native plants are also minimal as work methods assure that only target plants are controlled. These methods have been utilized on 

multiple non-native plant control programs in southern California and the conditions have been taken directly from FWS and CDFG permits. 
Programs using these methods have been operating for the past 10 years including multiple permit renewals.  Oversight by a biologist on site 

along with yearly reporting to regulatory agencies assures compliance with these restoration methods.  Any deviation from these methods 

(resulting in impacts to wildlife, vegetation or the habitat in general) would result in termination/suspension of active work and possible fines or a 
request for compensatory mitigation.  

Annual reports document work and compliance are provided to regulatory agencies that have issued permits: US Army Corps of Engineers, 

Department of Fish and Game, and Fish and Wildlife Service.  All permits clearly indicate work conditions/methods, and minimization & 
avoidance measures.  Regulatory agencies, county project managers and the project biologist assure compliance with these conditions.   

b) Locally designated species (e.g. heritage trees)?      

No impact.  The project does not affect locally designated species. 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        36 

c) Locally designated natural communities (e.g. oak forest, coastal 

habitat, etc.)?      

Less Than Significant Impact.  The project restores and protects native habitat and open space. 

d) Wetland habitat (e.g. marsh, riparian and vernal pool)?      

Less Than Significant Impact.  The restoration project will restore native riparian habitat, improving habitat quality for listed wildlife 

species.  The type of restoration activities carried out in this project (non-native plant control and native replanting) are considered by the 
CA Department of Fish & Game, the US Fish & Wildlife Service and the Army Corps of Engineers to be mitigation for impacts to riparian 

habitat (e.g. for small permanent impacts and temporary impacts).  The methodology described above (see project Initial Study and section 

IV (b)) will avoid negative impacts to the riparian habitat and endangered species that are found within the system.  Arundo and other 
target non-native plants severely impact the biological function of the riparian system by increasing fire and flood damage, modifying 

hydrology, and out competing native vegetation (effecting food and nesting resources).  The project is a net benefit, restoring riparian 

habitat.  

e) Wildlife dispersal or migration corridors?      
No impact.  The project will not alter channel position or otherwise impede water flows.  No equipment will operate in channels or 

flowing water.  No cut or reduced non-native plant biomass will be left in low flow channel areas.  

f) Adopted or proposed conservation plans and policies (e.g. Natural 

Community Conservation Plan or Resource Management Plan)? 
    

No Impact.  The restoration project does not conflict with any existing conservation plans.  The overall effect of the restoration project is 
to enhance riparian habitat.  Control of invasive non-native plant species is a high priority within Multiple Species Conservation Plans 

for San Diego County.  This program will facilitate completion of those goals in an efficient and comprehensive manner.  The San Diego 

River Conservancy is fulfilling a role and need on the watershed to enact landscape level restoration.  The SDRC board has 
representatives from multiple regional entities including the County of San Diego and the City.  The SDRC is also working with the 

Transnet EMP program (which is funding regional monitoring and implementation under NCCP Plans) to bring together partners to 

initiate/implement projects that fulfill the goals of the NCCP plans. 

11. AESTHETICS. Would the project:     

a) Affect a scenic vista or view open to the public?      
No Impact. No scenic vistas in the project area would be negatively affected.  The project would improve scenic views by removing 

stands of Arundo and pampas grass which would make mature native trees (sycamores, cottonwoods, oaks, and willows) more visible.  

Rock formation and river channel areas would also have increased visibility.  Arundo and pampas grass removal will have the long-term 
affect of saving the mature trees by reducing competition for limited resources and reducing the risk of devastating wildland riparian 

fires throughout the system.  The net effect will be to improve scenic riverine and coastal vistas by removing non-native vegetation that 

is impacting these resources. 

b) Affect a designated scenic highway?      
Less than significant impact.  The project will protect scenic resources by greatly reducing fire and flood risk in wildland areas.  Non-

native trees in wildland areas may be controlled, but they are replaced with native trees that contribute significantly less to the fuel load 

(are less of a fire hazard). Some non-native palms, eucalyptus and Brazilian pepper trees will be controlled, but these trees are in 
„wildland‟ areas with other native vegetation so visual impacts are minor. Rock outcroppings and historical buildings will not be 

impacted.  The immediate effect of the project will be to make mature native trees in river systems more visible, improving scenic 

riverine resources while reducing risk of fire from non-native plants that are a significant fire threat (Arundo, pampas grass, palms, and 
eucalyptus). 

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the 

site and its surroundings?  
    

Less than significant impact. Project areas are vegetated wildland „open space‟. Non-native plant control and re-vegetation with natives 

will restore these areas.  Riparian restoration will result in mature native vegetation and the river becoming more visible, improving the 
visual character of the riparian corridor. 

d) Create light or glare beyond the physical limits of the project site?       

No impact.  No new source of light or glare would be created so there would be no impact. 

 

12. CULTURAL/SCIENTIFIC 

RESOURCES, Would the project: 

   
 

a) Disturb archaeo or paleo resources?      
Less than significant impact. See 12 (b). 

No impact on paleological resources.  Work activities will not move or destroy rocks or rock formations. Additionally no grading or 

significant soil disturbance will occur.  

b) Affect historical resources?      



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        37 

Less than significant impact. Treatment of non-native plants would have no impact.  Reduction of treated biomass and re-vegetation would 

have a less than significant impact.  Significant disturbance of soil does not occur- no grading, use of tracked equipment, or other 

mechanized movement of soil occurs. The State Historic Office has concurred that impacts are unlikely during biomass reduction using 
these methods.   

 

To assure avoidance of impacts a search of registered archaeological sites is carried out for each project area at the South Coastal 
Information Center.  Any mowing and restoration work near or within registered sites will have a certified archeologist and a cultural 

monitor on site to assure that no impacts to cultural resources occur. 

 

If archaeological or cultural features or materials are identified by the archaeologist during the mowing, work will stop immediately in that 

area. No archaeological or cultural materials will be collected. Work will be diverted away from the sensitive areas, which will remain 

intact. If approved by the archaeological monitor, hand cutting of Arundo and other invasive plants may take place around identified milling 
features or other cultural resource/areas. Plant biomass will be carried to areas with no sensitive resources and mulching will occur at that 

location. 
c) Have the potential to cause a physical change which would affect 

unique ethnic cultural values?       

Less than significant impact.  No grading or significant soil disturbance will occur, making the changes to unique cultural resources 
unlikely. Non-native vegetation was not a  

 

13. RECREATION. Would project: 

   
 

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or 

other recreational facilities such that substantial physical 

deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated? 
    

No impact.  The project would not increase the use of existing parks and recreational facilities. 

b) Include recreational facilities or require the construction or 

expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse 

physical effect on the environment?  

    

No impact.  No recreational facilities would be constructed or expanded. 

c) Conflict with adopted recreational plans or policies?      
No impact.  The project does not conflict with adopted recreational plans or policies. 

 

14. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the 

project: 

   

 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that 

would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?      

No impact.  This project will not impact future availability of sand or rock for mining.   

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral 

resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific 

plan or other land use plan?  

    

No impact.  This project will not impact future availability of sand or rock for mining.   

 

15. HAZARDS.  Would the project: 
    

a) Create a hazard to the public or the environment through the 

routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?     
Less Than Significant Impact.  Fuel and plant herbicides (glyphosate, imzapyr) will be transported and used on site during habitat 

restoration.  Plant herbicides used in the restoration of sites have very low toxicity and are approved for use in aquatic areas (appendix 
1).  No disposal of materials will occur at project sites. The following BMPs will be in place to ensure that there are no significant 

impacts to the environment: 

 The transport of hazardous materials is regulated by the State and the transport of such materials to the site would comply with these 
regulations.   

 During restoration activities contractors will employ best management practices for spill control and prevention. With prevention 
and management in place, any spills of hazardous materials are considered less than significant. 

 Restoration equipment storage and maintenance will be conducted in non-wetland areas (degraded staging areas such as road sides, 
shoulders, parking lots, and areas with bare compacted soil. 

All mixing of herbicides and maintenance of equipment will occur only in areas that are devoid of vegetation and that are adjacent to 

existing roads (staging areas as described above).   

b) Create a hazard to the public or the environment through 

reasonably foreseeable upset & accident conditions involving the 

release of hazardous materials into the environment?  

        



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        38 

Less Than Significant Impact.  Some hazardous materials, such as fuel and plant herbicides, would be transported and used at the site 

during restoration activities, which would create a hazard to the environment should a spill occur.  The BMPs incorporated into the 

project (see above) would reduce the hazards to a less than significant level.  

c) Exposure of people to existing sources of health hazards?      
No impact.  Work occurs on vegetation which is not a health hazard. 

d) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where 

such plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public 

airport or public use airport, would the project result in  a safety 

hazard for people residing or working in the project area?  

   
 

No impact.  The site is not located within an airport land use plan or within 2 miles of a public airport or public use airport.  

e) For a project within the vicinity of private airstrip, would the 

project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in 

the project area?  

    

No impact.  The site is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip.  

f) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted 

emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?  
    

No impact.  The project activities are typically in open space areas and do not necessitate closing or blocking roads, or restricting there 

use.  Project activity would not alter emergency response or emergency evacuation routes. 

g) Expose people or structures to a significant risk or loss, injury or 

death involving wildland fires, including where wildlands are 

adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed 

with wildlands?  

    

No impact.  The project will not expose people or structures to significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires.  The 
control of Arundo and other non-native plants and replacement with native riparian vegetation will reduce the risk of wildland fire.  A 

significant reduction of fire risk will occur.  

16. PUBLIC SERVICES.  Would project 

result in need(s) for new/altered 

government facilities/services in: 

   

 

a) Fire protection?     

No impact. The project would not result in new or altered government facilities in fire protection. 

b) Police protection?      

No impact. The project would not result in new or altered government facilities in police protection. 

c) Schools?      

No impact. The project would not result in new or altered government facilities for schools. 

d) Maintenance of public facilities, including roads?      

No impact. The project would not result in any changes to the maintenance of public facilities, including roads. 

e) Other government services?      

No impact. The project would not result in new or altered government facilities in other government service areas. 

 

17. UTILITIES & SERVICE SYSTEMS.  

Would project result in needs for new or 

substantial alterations in: 

   

 

a) Power or natural gas?      
No impact.  The restoration project will not result in new or substantial alterations in power or natural gas. 

b) Communications systems?      
No impact.  The restoration project will not result in new or substantial alterations to communications systems. 

c) Local or regional water treatment or distribution facilities?      
No impact.  The restoration project will not result in new or substantial alterations to water treatment or distribution facilities. 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        39 

d) Sewer or septic tanks?      
No impact.  The restoration project will not result in new or substantial alterations to sewer lines or septic tanks. 

e) Solid waste disposal?      
No impact.  The restoration project will not create solid waste that needs to be disposed of.  

MANDATORY FINDINGS     

a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, 

substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife population to drop below 

self sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, 

reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal 

or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or 

prehistory? 

    

Less than significant impact.  The restoration activities carried out in this project are considered by CDFG, FWS and ACOE to be a form 

of mitigation for impacts to riparian habitat.  Arundo and non-native plant control and re-vegetation with native riparian species, 
increases the quality of riparian habitat for fish and wildlife species.  This project will directly enhance the riparian habitat, benefiting the 

endangered species that inhabit the San Diego Watershed.  A FWS Technical Assistance Letter (Appendix 1), CDFG 1600 permit, on 

site project biologist, and SDRC oversight will assure that as long as impact minimization and avoidance measures are followed, no 
significant impacts would result.  The project does not impact important examples of the major periods of California or prehistory. 

b) Does the project have the potential to achieve the short-term environmental 

goals to the disadvantage of the long-term environmental goals? 
    

No impact.  The invasive plant control program provides long term environmental benefits by implementing watershed based 

eradication of Arundo, pampas grass and other invasives.  This makes the projects sustainable over the long term and helps assure that 

habitat improvements, water conservation and fire/flood risk reduction are not temporary enhancements. Watershed based 
implementation utilizes pre-mapping of invasive non-native plant distributions (see figure 1) and a coordinated and planned 

implementation that assures all plant population are treated in a systematic fashion. 

c) Does the project have possible environmental effects which are individually 

limited but cumulatively considerable?  ("cumulatively considerable" means 

that the incremental effects of an individual project are considerable when 

viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other 

current projects, and the effects of probable future projects.) 

    

Less than significant impact.  The proposed project has been found to have less than significant impacts as 

determined by FWS Technical Assistance Letter.  No cumulatively considerable impacts would be realized 

when viewed in connection with the effects of existing or future proposed projects.  This project is part of a 

watershed wide habitat improvement program that will ensure that the project benefits are long lasting.  

d) Does project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse 

effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly 
    

No impact.  The project has been found to have no impacts or less than significant environmental impacts which are temporary.  

Therefore, the project would not cause substantial adverse effects on human beings.  

DETERMINATION: 

Choose 

One of the 

Following 

Based upon the evidence in light of the whole record documented in the attached environmental checklist explanation, cited 
incorporations and attachments, I find that the proposed project:  

COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a negative declaration (ND) will be prepared pursuant to CEQA 

Guidelines Article 6, 15070 through 15075.  
 

COULD have a significant effect on the environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because the mitigation 

measures have been added to the project.  A negative declaration (ND) will be prepared pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Article 6, 

15070 through 15075. 

 

MAY have a significant effect on the environment which has not been analyzed previously.  Therefore, an environmental impact 

report (EIR) is required. 
 

 
 

 

Signature: _________________________________________ 
 

Prepared by: Jason Giessow Telephone: (619) 645-3183 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        40 

PREPARERS/CONTRIBUTORS  
 

Jason Giessow, DENDRA Inc., (environmental services consultant to the San Diego River 

Conservancy) 

 

Ann Van Leer, Land Conservation Brokerage, Inc, (environmental services consultant to the San 

Diego River Conservancy) 

 

 

REFERENCES USED IN THE COMPLETION OF THE INITIAL 

STUDY CHECKLIST 
 

California Environmental Quality Act, CEQA Guidelines. CEQA Air Quality Handbook, South 

Coast Air Quality Management District, Revised November 1993. 

 

County of San Diego, Biological Mitigation Ordinance, Ord. Nos. 8845, 9246, 1998.  County of 

San Diego General Plan., http://www.sandiegoriver.org/documents/WorkPlan2006Final.pdf 

 

Demere, Thomas A., and Stephen L. Walsh. Paleontological Resources San Diego County.  

Department of Paleontology, San Diego Natural History Museum. 1994.   

 

Native American Heritage.  Public Resources Code §5097.9-5097.991.  

 

Department of Conservation, California Geological Service, 2007.  Fault Rupture Zones in 

California, Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act with Index to Earthquake Fault Zone 

Maps, Interim Revision. 

 

Natural Communities Conservation Plans: 

Multiple Species Conservation Plan (approved 1997: 

http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/dplu/mscp) & East County Multiple Species Conservation 

Plan (in development) 

 

San Diego County Code of Regulatory Ordinances, Chapter 4, Noise Abatement and Control, 

effective February 4, 1982. 

 

San Diego River Conservancy, 2006.  San Diego River Conservancy Five Year Strategic and 

Infrastructure Plan 2006-2011. 

 

TransNet Environmental Mitigation Program (http://www.sandag.org)  

 

 

http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/dplu/mscp
http://www.sandag.org/


 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        41 

 

 

Appendix 1 
 

 
FWS has already completed a „Technical Assistance Letter‟ for the program.  The letter states 

that as long as minimization and avoidance measures are followed (as outline in the plan 

submitted by San Diego River Conservancy), harassment and or take of listed species is unlikely. 

A section 7 consultation with the FWS is not required at this time for the San Diego River below 

El Capitan Dam.  No work will be initiated above the dam without additional FWS consultation. 

 

A correction was made and approved by FWS on Statement #11: biomass reduction may occur 

from September 15
th

 to March 15
th

 (riparian areas) and September 15
th

 to February 15
th

 in CSS. 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        42 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        43 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        44 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        45 

 



 

San Diego River Conservancy Initial Study: Invasive Non-native Plant Control and Restoration Program        46 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 
 

 

 

Aquatic approved herbicides approved by EPA for use in aquatic systems 

 

 

 

 

Glyphosate:  
 

(Multiple formulations exist- Aquamaster® is presented as an example) 

 

 

Aquamaster®: 

 

Label & MSDS 

 

 

 

 

 

Imazapyr: 
 

(Currently on Habitat® is registered as an approved aquatic formulation) 

 

Habitat®: 

 

Label & MSDS 

 



State of California 
San Diego River Conservancy 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S SUMMARY REPORT 
Meeting of September 3, 2009 

 
 
ITEM: 9 
 
SUBJECT: ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 

 
 
  
 


	1) 9 03 09 Board Meeting Agenda
	2) ITEM 1 Roll Call
	3) ITEM 2 approval of minutes
	3.1) Minutes from 7-9-2009 Board Meeting
	4) ITEM 3 Public Comment
	5) ITEM 4  Governing Board Member Comments
	6) ITEM 5 DAG'S report
	7) ITEM 6 San Diego River Footbridge
	8) ITEM 7 EO Report
	8.1) UT Progress made on river path
	8.2) Group to overhaul  MV
	8.3) AnniversaryPartyFlyer2009
	9) ITEM 8 San Diego River invasive Non-native Plant Control and Riparian
	9.1) ITEM 8 RESO Invasives_MND (2)
	9.2) Item 8 SDRC - Invasives MND_EO_rept
	9.3) Initial_Study_MASTER_7.8.09 - final
	10) ITEM 9 Adjournment

